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CORRIGENDUM GAZETTE NOTICE N0. 9122
IN Gazette Notice No. 8403 of 2014, delete the expression “iv” COURT OF APPEAL

appearing in the expression “40 (5) (b) (iv)” and insert the expression
“lvi)”.

IN Gazette Notice No. 2085 of 2014, Cause No. 157 of 2014,
amend the second petitioner’s name printed as “Mary Mwangi” to
read “Mary Wangui”.

IN Gazette Notice No. 8899 of 2015, amend the expression printed
as “(No. 4 0f 2012)" to read “(No. 4 of 2015)” where it appears.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9119

THE EWASO NYIRO NORTH RIVER BASIN DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY ACT

(Cap. 448)
APPOINTMENT

IN EXERCISE of the powers conferred by section 9 (1) of the
Ewaso Nyiro North River Basin Development Authority Act, the
Cabinet Secretary for Environment, Natural Resources and Regional
Development appoints-—

OMAR M. SHEIKH

as the Chief Executive Officer of Ewaso Nyiro North River Basin
Development Authority for a period of three (3) years, with effect
from the 16th February, 2016.

Dated the 27th November, 2015.
JUDI W. WAKHUNGU,
Cabinet Secretary for Environment, Natural Resources and
Regional Development Authorities.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9120
THE NATIONAL MUSEUMS AND HERITAGE ACT
(No. 6 of 2006)
" CONFIRMATION OF NOTICE

IN EXERCISE of the powers conferred by section 25 (3) of the
National Museums and Heritage Act, 20086, the Cabinet Secretary for
Sports, Culture and the Arts, confirms the declarations made in the
Gazette Notices listed in the schedule hereto.

 SCHEDULE |
Gazette Notice No. Date of Publication
13561 of 2012 28th September, 2012
13562 of 2012 28th September, 2012
13563 of 2012 28th September, 2012
8 of 2013 4th January, 2013
10686 of 2013 26th July, 2015
109 of 2015 16th January, 2015
374 of 2015 23rd January, 2015
375 of 2015 23rd January, 2015
376 of 2015 23rd January, 2015

Dated the 30th November, 2015.
HASSAN WARIO ARERO,
Cabinet Secretary for Sports, Culture and the Arts.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9121
THE TOURISM ACT
(No. 28 of 2011)
REVOCATION OF APPOINTMENT

IN EXERCISE of the powers conferred by section 43 (1) (f) (ii) of
the Tourism Act, 2011, the Cabinet Secretary for East Africa Affairs,
Commerce and Tourism revokes the appointment of —

Torre Mwakidede,
Methuselah Lang’at, i
as members of the Board of the Kenyatta International Convention
Centre as contained in Gazette Notice No. 7456 of 2015.
Dated the 12th November, 2015.
PHYLLIS KANDIE,

Cabinet Secretary,
Ministry of East Africa Affairs, Commmerce and Tourism.

CHRISTMAS VACATION, 2015

The Christmas vacation shall commence on Monday, the 21st
December, 2015 and shall terminate on Wednesday the 13th January,
2016. During the vacation; the Registry of the Cournt will be open to
the public from 9.00 a.m. to 12 noon on all weekdays except public
holidays. A judge will be in attendance for the disposal of any urgent
business.

Dated the 8th December, 2015,
WILLY MUTUNGA,
Chief Justice, Republic of Kenya.

GAZETTE NOTICE N0. 9123
HIGH COURT OF KENYA

NOTIFICATION OF PRACTICE DIRECTIONS ON THE DIVISION OF THE
HiGH COURT OF KENYA

IT IS notified for the information of the general public that in the
interest of effective case management of the expeditious disposal of
cases and in order that similar disputes are effectively and efficiently
adjudicated before specialized division of High Court, the Hon Chicf
Justice makes the following practice directions:

1. In addition to the divisions of the High Court of Kenya, namely,
the Criminal Division, the Civil Division, the Constitutional and
Human Rights Division, the Judicial Review Division, Commercial
and Tax Division in Nairobi and Mombasa and the Family Division,
there shall be established beginning the next term of the court on 15th
January 2016, a High Court Division on Anti-corruption and
Economic Crimes Division in Nairobi and Admiralty Division in
Mombasa.

- 2. In Nairobi all disputes relating to corruption and economic
crimes matters that may be filed under any Law in the High Court

shall be lodged and heard before the Anti-corruption and Economic
Crimes Division.

3. The Anti~corruption and Economic Crimes Division of the High
Court at Nairobi will have its own registry and it shall determine the
categorization of the matters that may be lodged and heard in the
division. The High Court may order that corruption and economic
crimes matters already filed in the other divisions of the High Court

shall be transferred, heard and determined at that division.

4. The Admiralty Division of the High Court at Mombasa will
have its own regisiry and shall determine the categorization of the
matiers that may be lodged and heard in the division. The High Court
may order maritime related disputes already filed in the other High
Courts be transferred, heard and determined at the Admiralty Division

5. All applications for international adoptions under Section 162 of
the Children Act, 2001 shall be lodged, heard and determined at the
Family Law Division of the High Court at Nairobi. All other adoption
applications may be lodged and disposed of at any of the High Court
stations including the Family Division of the High Court at Nairobi.

Dated the 8th December, 2015.

WILLY MUTUNGA,
Chief Justice and President of the Supreme Court.

GAZETTE NOTICE No. 9124
THE CENTRAL BANK OF KENYA ACT
(Cap. 491)
SPECIFICATION OF INSTITUTIONS
PURSUANT to section 2 of the Central Bank of Kenya Act, the
Central Bank of Kenya specifies—

Choice Microfinance Bank Limited,
Caritas Microfinance Bank Limited,

microfinance banks licensed under the Microfinance Act, 2006, as
institutions for the purposes of sections 34 and 36 of the Act.

Dated the 30th November, 2015.
PATRICK NJOROGE,
Governor, Central Bank of Kenya.
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GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9125
THE CENTRAL BANK OF KENYA ACT
(Cap. 491)
SPECIFICATION OF INSTITUTION
PURSUANT to section 2 of the Central Bank of Kenya Act, the
Central Bank of Kenya specifies—
KCB BANK KENYA LIMITED

a commercial bank licenced under the Banking Act, as an institution
for the purposes of the Act.

Dated the 30th November, 2015.
PATRICK NJOROGE,
Governor, Central Bank of Kenya.

GAZETTE NOTICE N0. 9126

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 0f2012)

ISSUE OF A PROVISIONAL CERTIFICATE

WHEREAS Gathigia Family Group Limited, a limited liability
company, of P.O. Box 7592-00200, Nairobi in the Republic of Kenya,
is registered as proprietor lessee of all that piece of land known as L.R.
No. 8285/265, situate in the city of Nairobi in the Nairobi Area, by
virtue of a lease registered as I.R. 27234/1, and whereas sufficient
evidence has been adduced to show that the said lease has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, 1 shall issue a provisional certificate of title provided that no
objection has been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
C.N.KITUYI,
MR/8473184 , Registrar of Titles, Nairobi.

GAZETTE NOTICE No. 9127

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT '
(No.3 of 2012) '

ISSUE OF A PROVISIONAL CERTIFICATE

WHEREAS Peter Mutiso Mbulo, of P.O. Box 70240, Nairobi in
the Republic of Kenya, is registered as' proprietor lessee of all that
piece of land known as L R. No. 13858/9, situate south of Ruiru Town
in Kiambu District, by virtue of a certificate of title registered as LR.
51739/1, and whereas sufficient evidence has been adduced to show
that the said lease has been lost, notice is given that after the expiration
of sixty (60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue a provisional
centificate of title provided that no objection has been received within

Dated the 1 1th December, 2015.

C.N.KITUYI,
MR/8473280 Registrar of Titles, Nairobi.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9128

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 of 2012)

ISSUE OF A PROVISIONAL CERTIFICATE

WHEREAS Bill Kipsang Rotich, of P.O. Box 56672-00200,
Nairobi in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor lessee of
all that piece of land known as L. R. No. 2176/72, situate south east of
Kitale Municipality in Trans Nzoia District, by virtue of a certificate of
title registered as 1.R. 77937/1, and whereas sufficient evidence has
been adduced to show that the said lease has been lost, notice is given
that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date hereof, I shall
issue a provisional certificate of title provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the 11th Decemnber, 2015.
C.N.KITUYI,
MR/8473279 Registrar of Titles, Nairobi.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9129

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
{No.30f2012)

ISSUE OF A PROVISIONAL CERTIFICATE

WHEREAS Joe Kipsang Cherono, as administrator of the estate of
Benjamin Kandie Cherono (deceased), of P.O. Box 18023-20100,
Nairobi in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor lessee of
all that piece of land known as L. R. No. 9038/135, situate in Kabamnet
Township in Baringo District, by virtue of a grant registered as I.R.
3986/1, and whereas sufficient evidence has been adduced to show
that the said grant has been lost, notice is given that after the expiration
of sixty (60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue a provisional
certificate of title provided that no objection has been received within
that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

J.W.KAMUYU,
MR/8473165 Registrar of Titles, Nairobi.
GAZETTE NOTICE No. 9130
THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT

(No.3 af2012)
ISSUE OF A PROVISIONAL CERTIFICATE

WHEREAS ICEA Lion Assurance Company Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in Kenya, of P.O. Box 46143-00100,
Nairobi in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor lessce of
all that piece of land known as L.R. No. 3734/110, situate in the city of
Nairobi in the Nairobi Area, by virtue of a certificate of title registered
as LR. 9880/1, and whereas sufficient evidence has been adduced to
show that the said centificate of title has been lost, notice is given that
after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue
a provisional certificate of title provided that no objection has been
received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

B. F. ATIENO,
MR/8473233 R Registrar of Titles, Nairobi.
GAZETTE NOTICE No. 9131
THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT

(No.3 ef2012)
ISSUE OF A PROVISIONAL CERTIFICATE

WHEREAS (1) Manjit S. Brar and (2) Aman $. Sagoo, as trustees
for Namaksar Satsangh Sabha, both of P.O. Box 14750-00800, Nairobi
in the Republic of Kenya, arc registered as proprietors lessees of all
that piece of land known as L.R. No. 209/10345/13, situate in the city
of Nairobi in the Nairobi Area, by virtue of a lease registered as LR.
43069/1, and whereas sufficient evidence has been adduced to show
that the said lease has been lost, notice is given that after the expiration
of sixty (60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue a provisional
certificate of title provided that no objection has been received within
that period.

Dated the 1th December, 2015.
C.N.KITUYI,
MR/8473232 Registrar of Titles, Nairobi.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9132
THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 of 2012)
ISSUE OF A PROVISIONAL CERTIFICATE

WHEREAS Mombasa Secondary School for the Physically
Handicapped, of P.O. Box 82339, Mombasa in the Republic of Kenya,
is registered as a proprietor in leaschold interest of all that piece of
land containing 5.756 hectares or thereabout, registered as C.R.
32416/1, known as MN/I/5676, situate within Mombasa Municipality
in Mombasa District, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the said certificate of lease has been lost, notice
is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, I shall issue a provisional certificate of title provided that no
objection has been received within that period.

Drated the 11th December, 2015.
J. G. WANJOHI,
MR/8473134 Registrar of Titles, Mombasa District.
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GAZETTE NOTICE N0. 9133

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)

ISSUE OF A PROVISIONAL CERTIFICATE

WHEREAS Ferrea Monica, of P.O. Box 684, Watamu in the
Republic of Kenya, is registered as a proprietor in leasehold interest of
that Apartment No. CO5 on all that piece of land registered as C.R.
48004/1, sitwate within Watamu n Kilifi District, and whereas
sufficient evidence has been adduced to show that the said certificate
of lease has been lost, notice 1s given that after the expiration of sixty
(60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue a provisional certificate of
title provided that no objection has been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
J. G. WANJOHI,

MR/8473225 Registrar of Titles, Mombasa District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9134

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(Ne.3 of 2012)

[SSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Constance Onyango Otieno, of P.O. Box 515, Kisumu
in the Repubhic of Kenya, i1s registered as proprietor in absolute
ownership interest of that piece of land containing 0.04 hectare or
thereabouts, situate in the district of Kisumu, registered under title No.
Kisumw/Kanyakwar ‘A’/424, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, 1 shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015,

G. 0. NYANGWESO,

MR/8473183 Land Registrar, Kisumu District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO 9135

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012}

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Maurice Onyango Odera, of P.O. Box 3652, Kisumu
in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in absolute
ownership interest of that piece of land containing 0.16 hectare or
thereabouts, situate in the distnct of Kisumu, registered under title No.
KisumwKorando/2859, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, [ shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the 1 1th December, 2015.
G. 0. NYANGWESO,

MR/8473183 Land Registrar, Kisumu District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9136

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 0f2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Cosmas Jagongo Ngeso, of P.O. Box 27821, Nairobi
in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in absolute
ownership interest of that piece of land containing 0.0693 hectare or
thereabouts, situate in the district of Kisumu, registered under title No.
Kisumu/Kadongo/4621, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, T shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

G. O. NYANGWESO,

MR/8473183 Land Registrar, Kisumu District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9137

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
{Neo.3 0f2012)

ISSUE OF A NEw LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS (1) Emmanuel Fredrick Agingu Oniango and (2)
Reuben Oniango Ombok, both of P.O. Box 246, Maseno in the
Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor m absolute ownership
interest of that piece of land containing 4.6 hectares or thereabout,
situate in the district of Kisumu, registered under title No.
Kisumw/Rata/753, and whereas sufficient evidence has been adduced
to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost, notice is
given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date hereof, 1
shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has been
received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015,

G. O. NYANGWESO,

MR/7828958 Land Registrar, Kisumu District.

GAZETTE NOTICE N0O. 9138

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 0f2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Elijah Miremo Migori, of P.O. Box 4713, Kisumu in
the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in absolute
ownership interest of that piece of land containing 2.0 hectares or
thereabout, situate in the district of Kisumu, registered under title No.
Kisumu/Nyalunya/351, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, I shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the | 1th December, 2015.

G. O. NYANGWESO,

MR/8473183 Land Registrar, Kisumu District.

GAZETTE NOTICE No. 9139

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 0f 2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Charles Ouma Onango, of P.O. Box 902, Kisumu in
the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in absolute
ownership interest of that piece of land containing 1.2 hectares or
thereabout, situate in the district of Kisumu, registered under title No.
Kisumu/Chiga/751, and whereas sufficient evidence has been adduced
to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost, notice is
given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date hereof, I
shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has been
received within that period.

Dated the |1th December, 2015.

G. 0. NYANGWESO,

MR/8473183 Land Registrar, Kisumu District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO 9140

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 0f 2012)

1SSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS (1) Christopher Ojijo Adada and (2) Kezia Were
Oiijo, both of P.O. Box 38, Oyugis in the Republic of Kenya, is
registered as proprietor in absolute ownership interest of that piece of
land containing 0.04 hectare or thereabouts, situate in the district of
Kisumu, registered under title No. Kisumu/Kanyakwar ‘A’/1635, and
whereas sufficient evidence has been adduced to show that the land
title deed issued thereof has been lost, notice is given that after the
expiration of sixty (60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue a new
title deed provided that no objection has been received within that
period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

J. 5. ONARY,

MR/8473183 Land Registrar, Kisumu District.




11th December, 2015

THE KENYA GAZETTE 2913

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9141

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 0f2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Wilter Ngumi Kibuika (ID/7483969), 1s registered as
proprietor in absolute ownership interest of that piece of land
containing 1.22 hectares or thereabout, situate in the district of
Nakuru, registered under title No. Nakuru/Rare/Nguriga/500, and
whereas sufficient evidence has been adduced to show that the land
tithe deed issued thereof has been lost, notice is given that after the
expiration of sixty (60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue a new
titke deed provided that no objection has been received within that
period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

M. SUNGU,

MR/8473224 Land Registrar, Nakuru District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9142

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
{(No.3 of 2012}

1SSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Joseph Njoroge Kariuki, is registered as proprietor in
absolute ownership interest of that piece of land containing 0.038
hectare or thereabouts, situate in the district of Kakamega, registered
under title No. Kakamega/Sergoit/2108, and whereas sufficient
evidence has been adduced to show that the land title deed issued
thereof has been lost, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty
(60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue a new title deed provided
that no objection has been received within that period.

Dated the 1 1th December, 2015.
J. M. FUNDIA,

MR/8473146 Land Registrar, Kakamega District.

GAZETTE NOTICE N0. 9143

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Amina Omari (ID/0266458), of P.O. Box 1438, Embu
in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in absolute
ownership interest of that piece of land containing 0.05 hectare or
thereabouts, situate in the district of Embu, registered under title No.
Gaturi/Githimw/3595, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, | shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the | I1th December, 2015.
1. M. MUNGUTI,

MR/8473217 Land Registrar, Embu Dustrict.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9144

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Joshua Njiru H. Ndwiga (ID/3304025), of P.O. Box
435, Runyenjes in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in
absolute ownership interest of that piece of land contamning 1.21
hectares or thereabout, situate in the district of Embu, registered under
title No. Kyeni/Mufu/1573, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, | shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

J. M. MUNGUTI,

MR/8473200 Land Registrar, Embu District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9145

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 0f2012)

ISSUE OF A NEw LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Wasike Bonee Simiyu, of P.O. Box 49230-00100,
Natrobi in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in
absolute ownership interest of that piece of land containing 0.1915
hectare or thereabouts, situate in the district of Machakos, registered
under title No. Donyo Sabuk/Komarock Block 1/19402, and whereas
sufficient evidence has been adduced to show that the land title deed
issued thereof has been lost, notice is given that afier the expiration of
sixty (60) days from the date hereof, 1 shall i1ssue a new title deed
provided that no objection has been received within that period.

Dated the 1 th December, 2015.
F. M. MUTHUI,

MR/8473151 Land Registrar, Machakos District

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9146

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 of 2012}

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Betty Mueni Mwobobia, of P.O. Box 30006, Nairobi
in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in absolute
ownership interest of that piece of land containing 0.8251 hectare or
thereabouts, situate in the district of Machakos, registered under title
No. Athi River/Athi River Block 1/540, and whereas sufficient
evidence has been adduced to show that the land title deed issued
thereof has been lost, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty
(60) days from the date hereof, | shall issue a new title deed provided
that no objection has been received within that period.

Dated the 1 1th December, 2015,
F. M. MUTHUI,

MR/8473228 Land Registrar, Machakos Distrect

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9147

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of2012)

1SSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS John Michael Kyalo Kilonzo, of P.O. Box 413-90131,
Tala in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in absolute
ownership interest of that piece of land containing 0.6 hectare or
thereabouts, situate in the district of Machakos, registered under title
No. Kangundo/lsinga/238, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, I shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the [ 1th December, 2015.
F. M. MUTHUI,

MR/8473229 Land Registrar, Machakos District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9148

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Peter Thugo Nganga (ID/3073860), of P.O. Box 655~
00217, Limuru in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in
absolute ownership interest of that piece of land containing 3.15
hectares or thereabout, situate in the district of Kiambu, registered
under title No. Limuru/Bibirioni/1800, and whereas sufficient
evidence has been adduced to show that the land title deed issued
thereof has been lost, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty
(60) days from the date hereof, I shall 1ssue a new title deed provided
that no objection has been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

E. W. BABU,

MR/8473171 Land Registrar, Kiambu District.
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GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9149
THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 0f2012)
ISSUE OF NEW LAND TITLE DEEDS

WHEREAS Njau Rimui (ID/0985307), of P.O. Box 46, Karuri in
the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in absolute
ownership interest of those pieces of land containing 0.108 hectare and
2.17 acres or thereabout, situate in the district of Kiambu, registered
under title No. Kiambaa/Waguthu/414, and whereas sufficient
evidence has been adduced to show that the land title deed issued
thereof has been lost, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty
(60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue a new title deed provided
that no objection has been received within that period.

Dated the 1 1th December, 2015.
W.N. MUGURO,
MR/8473083 Land Registrar, Kiambu District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9150
THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)
ISSUE OF NEW LAND TITLE DEEDS

WHEREAS Ziporrah Nyambugu Mbugua (ID/3107105), of P.O.
Box 1715-20117, Naivasha in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as
proprietor in absolute ownership interest of those pieces of land
containing 0.7956, 0.0405, 0.0408, 0.0450 and 0.0405 hectare or
thereabouts, situate in the district of Naivasha, registered under title
Nos. Gilgil/Gilgil Block 1/3843 and 3814, Naivasha Mwichiringiri
Block 4/13060 and 18629 and Naivasha/Maraigushu Block 1/2630,
respectively, and whereas sufficient evidence has been adduced to
show that the land title deeds issued thereof have been lost, notice is
given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date hereof, |
shall issue new title deeds provided that no objection has been
received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

R. MARITIM,
MR/8473143 Land Registrar, Naivasha District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9151
THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)
ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS (1) Peter Kariuki Mbugua (ID/11723486) and (2) Ruth
Wanjiru Ruthi (ID/30438184), both of P.O. Box 126, Limuru in the
Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in absolute ownership
interest of that piece of land containing 2.02 hectares or thereabout,
situate in the district of Naivasha, registered under title No.
Kijabe/Kijabe Block 1/1217, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, I shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

C. W. MWANIKI,
MR/8473192 Land Registrar, Naivasha District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9152

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Anthony Mucheke Waweru (ID/2913806), of P.O.
Box 128, Wanguru in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as
proprietor in absolute ownership interest of that piece of land
containing 0.20 hectare or thereabouts, situate in the district of
Kirinyaga, registered under title No. Mwea/Tebere/B/3256, and
whereas sufficient evidence has been adduced to show that the land
title deed issued thereof has been lost, notice is given that after the
expiration of sixty (60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue a new
title deed provided that no objection has been received within that
period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

C. W.NJAGI,
MR/8473213 Land Registrar, Kirinyaga District.

GAZETTE NOTICE No. 9153

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 of 2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Dickson Njoroge Joseph (1D/5436473), of P.O. Box
44-00206, Kiserian in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as
proprietor in absolute ownership interest of that piece of land
containing 0.40 hectare or thereabouts, situate in the district of
Kajiado, registered under title No. Kjd/Olchoro Onyore/7565, and
whereas sufficient evidence has been adduced to show that the land
title deed issued thereof has been lost, notice is given that after the
expiration of sixty (60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue a new
title deed provided that no objection has been received within that
period.

Dated the ! 1th December, 2015.

T. M. KAKEWA,
MR/8473030 Land Regisrar, Kajiado North District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9154

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 of 2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Dorothy Clementine Otieno (ID/1910147), of P.O.
Box 5904900200, Nairobi in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as
proprietor in absolute ownership interest of that picce of land
containing 0.05 hectare or thereabouts, situate in the district of
Kajiado, registered under title No. Kajiado/Kisaju/5764, and whereas
sufficient evidence has been adduced to show that the land title deed
issued thercof has been lost, notice is given that after the expiration of
sixty (60) days from the date hereof, | shall issue a new title deed
provided that no objection has been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

J.M. WAMBUA,
MR/8473035 Land Registrar, Kajiado District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9155

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Zablon Okoma Washikunyi (ID/4862495), of P.O.
Box 44, Yala in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in
absolute ownership interest of that piece of land containing 0.05
hectare or thereabouts, situate in the district of Kajiado, registered
under title No. Kajiado/Kitengela/12668, and whereas sufficient
evidence has been adduced to show that the land title deed issued
thereof has been lost, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty
(60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue a new title deed provided
that no objection has been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

J. M. WAMBUA,
MR/8473219 Land Registrar, Kajiade District.
GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9156
THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 of 2012)
ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Jane Wandiri Muriithi (ID/8601031), of P.O. Box 142,
Embu in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in absolute
ownership interest of that piece of land containing 0.10 hectare or
thereabouts, situate in the district of Kajiado, registered under title No.
Kajiado/Kitengela/79516, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, I shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
I.N. KAMAU,
MR/8473234 Land Registrar, Kajiado District.
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GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9157

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS John Mwangi Ikinu, of P.O. Box 281, Busia in the
Republic of Kenys, is registcred as proprietor in absolute ownership
interest of that piece of land containing 0.91 hectare or thereabouts,
situate in the district of Busia/Teso, registered under title No.
Bukhayo/Bugengi/2252, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduoed to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost;
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, I shall issuc a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the | 1th December, 2015,
C. WANYAMA,

MR/8473278 Land Registrar, Busia/Teso Districts.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9158

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS John Mwangi Ikinu, of P.O. Box 281, Busia in the
Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in absolute ownership
intcrest of that piece of land containing 0.05 hectare or thereabouts,
situate in the district of Busia/Teso, registered under title No. South
Teso/Angoromo/3012, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, | shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the | ith December, 2015.

C. WANYAMA,

MR/B473278 Land Registrar, Busia/Teso Districts.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9159

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 0f2012)
ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS John Mwangi Ikinu, of P.O. Box 281, Busia in the
Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprictor in absolute ownership
interest of that piece of land containing 0.03 hectare or thercabouts,
situate in the district of Busia/Teso, registered under title No.
Bukhayo/Mundika/4839, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, 1 shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

C. WANYAMA,

MR/B473278 Land Registrar, Busia/Teso Districts.

GAZETTE NOTICE NoO. 9160

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS John Mwangi Ikinu, of P.O. Box 281, Busia in the
Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in absolute ownership
interest of that piece of land contsining 0.72 hectare or thereabouts,
situate in the district of Busia/Teso, registered under title No.
Bukhayo/Bugengi/3230, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hercof, 1 shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

O WANYAMA

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9161

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 af 2012)

ISSUE OF A NEwW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Alfred O. Ouma, is registered as proprictor in absolute
ownemship interest of that piece of land containing 0.8 hectare or
thereabouts, situate in the district of Busia/Teso, registered under title
No. Bukhayo/Matayos/2449, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, | shall issuc a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the | 1th December, 2015.

C. WANYAMA,

MR/B473080 Land Registrar, Busia/Teso Districts.

GAZETTE NOTICE N0. 9162

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 of 2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TYTLE DEED

WHEREAS Kalasina Akumu Festo, is registered as proprietor in
absolute ownership interest of that picce of land containing 0.14
hectare or thereabouts, situate in the district of Busia/Teso, registered
under title No. Marach/Elukongo/208, and whereas sufficient evidence
has been adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has
been lost, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days
from the date hereof, I shall issue a new title deed provided that no
objection has been received within that period.
Dated the 1]th December, 2015.
C. WANYAMA,

MR/8473080 Land Registrar, Busia/Teso Districts.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9163

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 of 2012)

1SSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Paul Okech Oloo, is registered as proprietor in
absolute ownership interest of that piece of land containing 0.0946
hectare or thereabouts, situate in the district of Busia/Teso, registered
under title No. Bukhayo/Mundike/12139, and whereas sufficient
evidence has been adduced to show that the land title deed issued
thercof has been lost, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty
(60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue a new title deed provided
that no objection has been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

C. WANYAMA,

MR/8473080 Land Registrar, Busia/Teso Districts.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9164

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 0f2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Paul Okech Oloo, is registered as proprietor in
absolute ownership intercst of that piece of land containing (.06
hectare or thereabouts, situate in the district of Busia/Teso, registerad
under title No. South Teso/Angoromo/5450, and whereas sufficient
evidence has been adduced to show that the land title deed issued
thereof has been lost, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty
(60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue a new title deed provided
that no objection has been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
C. WANYAMA,
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GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9165

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 0f2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Mary Akaa, of P.O. Box 766, Busia in the Republic of
Kenya, is registered as proprietor in absolute ownership interest of that
piece of land containing 0.864 hectare or thereabouts, situate in the
district  of  Busia/Teso, registered under title  No.
Bukhayo/Mundika/7755, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, 1 shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
S. R. KAMBAGA,

MR/8473080 Land Registrar, Busia/Teso Districts.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9166

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)

1SSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Samuel Ngumo Warutere, of P.O. Box 230, Karatina
in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in absolute
ownership interest of that piece of land containing 2.021 hectares or
thereabout, situate in the district of Laikipia, registered under title No.
Daiga Umande Block 5/31 (Kangaita), and whereas sufficient
evidence has been adduced to show that the land title deed issued
thereof has been lost, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty
(60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue a new title deed provided
that no objection has been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
P. M. MUTEGI,

MR/B473121 Land Registrar, Laikipia District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9167

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)
ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Purity Gacheri Nyaga (ID/10253125), of P.O. Box 19,
Chuka in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in absolute
ownership interest of that piece of land containing 0.10 hectare or
thereabouts, situate in the district of Meru South, registered under title
No. Karingani/Muiru/2357, and whereas sufficient evidence has been
adduced to show that the land title deed issued thereof has been lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof, I shall issue a new title deed provided that no objection has
been received within that period.

Dated the [1th December, 2015.
P. N. KARUTI,

MR/B473175 Land Registrar, Meru South District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9168

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 of 2012)

IssuE OF ANEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Yunuke Kemunto Onywere (ID/2707158), is
registered as proprietor in absolute ownership interest of that piece of
land containing 10.53 hectares or thereabout, situate in the district of
Nyamirg, registered under title No. North Mugirango/lkonge/988, and
whereas' sufficient evidence has been adduced to show that the land
title deeds issued thereof have been lost, notice is given that after the
expiration of sixty (60) days from the date hereof, I shall issue new
titie deeds provided that no objection has been received within that
period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

K. E. M. BOSIRE,

MR/8473176 Land Registrar, Nyamira District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9169

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)

ISSUE OF A NEW LAND TITLE DEED

WHEREAS Eunice Wanjiru Gatimu (1D/3387887), of P.O. Box
283, Kerugoya in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in
absolute ownership interest of that piece of land containing 2.45
hectares or thereabout, situate in the district of Kirinyaga, registered
under title No. Mwerua/Gitaku/189, and whereas sufficient evidence
has been adduced to show that the land title deeds issued thereof have
been lost, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days
from the date hereof, I shall issue new title deeds provided that no
objection has been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

1. K. MUTHEE,

MR/8473319 Land Registrar, Kirinyaga District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9170
THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 0f2012)
RECONSTRUCTION OF LOST OR DESTROYED LAND REGISTER

WHEREAS (1) Peter Njogu Kinyanjui and (2) Anne Wanjugu
Kinyanjui, both of P.O. Box 862-00606, Nairobi in the Republic of
Kenya, are registered as proprietors of all that piece of land known as
LR. No. 12672/177, situate in the city of Nairobi in the Nairobi Area,
by virtue of a grant registered as I.R. 89140, and whereas the land
register in respect thereof is lost or destroyed, and whereas efforts
made to locate the said land register have failed, notice is given that
after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date hereof, the
property register shall be reconstructed under the provisions of section
33 (5) of the Act, provided that no objection has been received within
that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
G.M. MUYANGA,

MR/8473126 Land Registrar, Nairobi.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9171
THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
{No.3 of 2012}
RECONSTRUCTION OF LOST OR DESTROYED LAND REGISTER

WHEREAS The Tourism Finance Corporation (Fomerly Kenya
Tourist Development Corporation), of P.O. Box 42013-00100,
Nairobi in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor of all that
piece of land known as L.R. No. 209/8664, situate in the city of
Nairobi in the Nairobi Area, by virtue of a grant registered as LR.
30319, and whereas the land register in respect thereof is lost or
destroyed, and whereas efforts made to locate the said land register
have failed, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days
from the date hereof, the property register shall be reconstructed under
the provisions of section 33 (5) of the Act, provided that no objection
has been received within that period.

Dated the 1!th December, 2015.
G.M. MUYANGA,

MR/8473125 Land Registrar, Nairobi.

GAZETTE NOTICE N0. 9172
THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 0f2012)
RECONSTRUCTION OF LOST OR DESTROYED LAND REGISTER

WHEREAS Taj Mall, of P.O. Box 31939-00600, Nairobi in the
Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor of all that piece of land
known as L R. No. 209/12963, situate in Nairobi District, by virtue of
a lease registered as IR. 88762, and whereas the land register in
respect thereof is lost or destroyed, and whereas efforts made to locate
the said land register have failed, notice is given that after the
expiration of sixty (60) days from the date hereof, the property register
shall be reconstructed under the provisions of section 33 (5) of the Act,
provided that no objection has been received within that period.

Dated the | 1th December, 2015.
G. M. MUYANGA,

MR/8473164 Land Registrar, Nairobi.
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GAZETTE NOTICE N0.9173

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)

RECONSTRUCTION OF LOST OR DESTROYED LAND REGISTER

WHEREAS Ferozdin Surajdin Yan Mohamed, of P.O. Box 435-
‘10400, Nanyuki in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor
of all that piece of land known as L.R. No. 2787/1285, situate in the
city of Nairobi in Nairobi Area, by virtue of a grant registered as [R.
57846, and whereas the land register in respect thereof is lost or
destroyed, and whereas efforts made to locate the said land register
have failed, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days
from the date hereof, the property register shall be reconstructed under

‘the provisions of section 33 (5) of the Act, provided that no objection

has been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015. - ' \
G.M.MUYANGA,

MR/8473039 Land Registrar, Nairobi.
GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9174
'THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)

RECONSTRUCTION OF LOST OR DESTROYED LAND REGISTER
WHEREAS Mohamed Koriow Nur, of P.O. Box 69196-00622,

"Nairobi in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor of all that

piece of land known as L.R. No. 209/15308, situate in the city of
Nairobi in Nairobi Area, by virtue of a certificate of title registered as
IR. 94643/1, and whereas the land register in respect thereof is lost or
destroyed, and whereas efforts made to locate the said land register
have failed, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60} days
from the date hereof, the property register shall be reconstructed under

" the provisions of section 33 (5) of the Act, provided that no objection

has been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
G.M. MUYANGA,

MR/8473292 Land Registrar, Nairobi.

GAZETTE NOTICE N0O. 9175

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)

RECONSTRUCTION OF LOST OR DESTROYED LAND REGISTER

WHEREAS Mohamed Koriow Nur, of P.O. Box 69196-00622,
Nairobi in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor of all that

-piece of land known as L.R. No. 209/15307, situate in the city of

Nairobi in Nairobi Area, by virtue of a certificate of title registered as

‘LR. 94642/1, and whereas the land register in respect thereof is lost or

destroyed, and whereas efforts made to locate the said land register
have failed, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days
from the date hereof, the property register shall be reconstructed under
the provisions of section 33 (5) of the Act, provided that no objection
has been received within that period. -

Dated the 11th December, 2015,
G. M. MUYANGA,

MR/8473292 Land Registrar, Nairobi.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9176
THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)
RECONSTRUCTION OF LOST OR DESTROYED LLAND REGISTER

WHEREAS Mohamed Koriow Nur, of P.O: Box 69196-00622,
Nairobi in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor of all that
piece of land known as L.R. No. 209/15309, situate in the city of
Nairobi in Nairobi Area, by virtue of a certificate of title registered as

LR. 94644/1, and whereas the land register in respect thereof is lost or
destroyed, and whereas efforts made to locate the said land register

.have failed, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days

from the date hereof, the property register shall be reconstructed under
the provisions of section 33 (5) of the Act, provided that no objection
has been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
'G.M.MUYANGA,

MR/8473292 Land Registrar, Nairobi.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9177

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 of 2012)

RECONSTRUCTION OF LOST OR DESTROYED LAND REGISTER

WHEREAS Tessy Wamatuba, of P.O. Box 19072-00501, Nairobi
in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor of all that piece of
land known as L.R. No. 12715/3936, situate in the north west of Athi
River in Machakos District, by virtue of a certificate of title registered
as LR. 99531/1, and whereas the land register in respect thereof is lost
or destroyed, and whereas efforts made to locate the said land register
have failed, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days
from the date hereof, the property register shall be reconstructed under
the provisions of section 33 (5) of the Act, provided that no objection
has been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
J.W.KAMUYU,

MR/8473149 Land Registrar, Nairobi.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9178

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 0f2012)

RECONSTRUCTION OF LOST OR DESTROYED LAND REGISTER

* WHEREAS (1) Dhirendra Pragji Solanki and (2) Kalpana
Dhirendra Solanki, both of P.O. Box 38720-00600, Nairobi in the
Republic -of Kenya, are registered as proprietors of all that piece of
land known as L.R. No. 1/1045, situate in Nairobi District, by virtue of
a conveyance registered as N 56 Folio 237/1 File 17219, and whereas
the land register in respect thereof is lost or destroyed, and whereas
efforts made to locate the said land register have failed, notice is given
that after the expiration of sixty (60) days.from the date hereof, the
propetrty register shall be reconstructed under the provisions of section
33 (5) of the Act, provided that no objection has been received within
that period. T

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
J.W.KAMUYU,

MR/8473064 Land Registrar, Nairobi. *

GAZETTE NOTICE N0. 9179

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 of 2012)

RECONSTRUCTION OF LOST OR DESTROYED LAND REGISTER

WHEREAS (1) Ali Sheikh Mohamed Hassan and (2) Farah
Mahamed Barrow Trading as Alfa Traders, both of P.O. Box 69053—
00622, Nairobi in the Republic of Kenya, are registered as proprietors
of all that piece of land known as L.R. No. 36/VI1/1037, situate in the
Nairobi District, by virtue of a certificate of title registered as IR.
104471, and whereas the land register in respect thereof is lost or
destroyed, and whereas efforts made to locate the said land register
have failed, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days
from the date hereof, the property register shall be reconstructed under
the provisions of section 33 (5) of the Act, provided that no objection
has been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
P.M.NG'ANG'A,
MR/8473261 Land Registrar, Nairobi.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9180

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 0f2012)

Loss OF LAND REGISTER

WHEREAS Stephen Kamau Njoroge (1D/4296941}), of P.O. Box 6,
Kalimoni in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor in
absolute ownership interest of that piece of land situate in the district
of Thika, registered under title No. Juja/Juja East Block I/683, and
whereas sufficient evidence has been adduced to show that the land

- register (green card) of the said piece of land is missing, and whereas

all efforts made to locate the said land register (green card) have
failed, notice is given that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from



11th December, 2015

the date hereof, provided no valid objection has been received within
that period, 1 intend to open another land register and upon such
opening the said missing land reglster shall be deemed obsolete and of
no effect.

Dated the | 1th Decmber, 2015.
J. K. NJOROGE,

MR/B473139 Land Registrar, Thika District.
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GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9181

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 0f2012)

OPENING OF A NEW REGISTER

WHEREAS Mann International Company Limited, of P.O. Box
1819300500, Nairobi in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as
proprietor in absolute ownership interest of that piece of land
containing 16.26 hectares or thereabout, situate in the district of
Kajiado, registered under title No. Kjd/Kaputiei North/47078, and
whereas the first edition of the land register showing the aforesaid
ownership is lost, and whereas sufficient evidence has been adduced to
show the said ownership and loss, notice is given that [ shall open a
new land register at the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date
hereof provided that no objection has been received within that period.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

N. D. NYAMBASO,

MR/8473094 Land Registrar, Kajiado District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9182

'THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.30f 2012)

REGISTRATION OF INSTRUMENT

WHEREAS Sammy Leshoré, of P.O. Box 4184200100, Nairobi
in the Republic of Kenye, is registered as proprietor lessee of all that
land containing 0.0250 hectare or thereabouts, known as L.R. No.
209/10480/127, situate in the city of Nairobi in the Nairobi Area, held
by virtue of a certificate of title registered as LR. 95611/1, and
whereas the Parliamentary Service Commission has executed a
discharge in favour of Sammy Leshore, and whereas affidavits have

been filled in terms of section 65 (1) (k) of the said Act, declaring that _

the said certificate of title registered as L.R. 95611/1 is not available
for registration, notice is given that after the expiration of fourteen (14)
days from the date hereof, provided no valid objection has been
received within that period, I intend to dispense with the production of
the said certificate of title and procecd with the registration of the said
instrument of transfer.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
' F. K. ORIOKI,

MR/B473041 Registrar of Titles, Nairobi.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9183 '

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 0f 2012)

REGISTRATION OF INSTRUMENT

WHEREAS Joseph Kihara, of P.O. Box 1023, Karatina in the
_Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor lessee of all that land
comntaining 0.1690 hectare or thereabouts, known as L.R. No.
11969/123, situate in Marsabit in Marsabit District, held by yirtue of a
grant registered as I.R. 4846/1, and whereas Kenya Commercial Bank
Limited has executed a discharge in favour of Joseph Kihara, and
whereas affidavits have been filled in terms of section 65 (1) (4) of the
said Act, declaring that the said grant registered as LR. 4846/1 is not
available for registration, notice is given that after the expiration of
fourteen (14) days from the date hereof, provided no valid objection
has been received within that period, 1 intend to dispense with the
production of the said grant and proceed with the registration of the

said instrument of transfer,

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
B. F. ATIENO,

'MR/B473137 ° Registrar of Titles, Nairobi.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9184

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)
REGISTRATION OF INSTRUMENT

WHEREAS Ismael Kiplagat Chelanga (deceased), of P.O. Box 28,
Nakuru in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor of that
picce of land known as Eldoret Municipality Block 7/209, situate in
the district of Uasin Gishu, and whereas the High Court at Nairobi in
succession cause’No. 2258 of 1996, has issued grant of letters of
administration and certificate of confirmation of grant in favour of (1)
Rahila Cheruto Chelanga and (2) Shamira Chepkemei Chelanga, both
of P.O. Box 76475, Nairobi, and whereas the said court has execused
an application to be registered as proprietor by transmission in respect
of the said piece of land registered in the name of Ismael Kiplagat
Chelanga (deceased), and whereas the land title deed issued in respect
of the said piece of land is lost, notice is given that after the expiration
of thirty (30) days from the date hereof, provided no valid objection
has been received within that period, I intend to dispense with the
production of the said land title deed and proceed with registration of
the said application to be registered as proprietor by transmission i
the names (1) Rahila Cheruto Che[a.nga and (2) Shamira Chepkemei
Chelanga, and upon such registration the land title deed issued earlier
to the said Ismael Kiplagat Chelanga (deceased), shall be deemed te be
cancelled and of no effect.

Dated the 11th December, 2015. ,
D. C.LETTING,
MR/8473096

Land Registrar, Uasin Gishu District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NoO. 9185

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)
REGISTRATION OF INSTRUMENT

WHEREAS Lilian Nyambura Kitaru (deceased), is registered as
proprietor of that piece of land contminmg 0.1 | hectare or thereabouts,
known as Muguga/Muguga/2023, situate in the district of Kiambu, and
whereas the senior principal magistrate’s court at Limuru in succession
cause No. 143 of 2013, has issued grant of letters of administration to
John Mbari Kiratu, and whereas the said title deed issued to Lilian
Nyambura Kitant (deceased) has been reported missing or lost, notice
is given that after the expiration of thirty (30) days from the date
hereof, provided no valid objection has been received within that
period, I intend to dispense with the production of the said land tite
deed and proceed with registration of the said instrument of R. L. 19
and R. L. 7; and upon such registration the land title deed issued to
Lilian Nyambura Kitaru (deceased), shall be deemed to be cancelled
and of no effect.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

L3

E.W.BABU,

MR/8473157 Land Registrar, Kiambu District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9186

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 0f 2012)
REGISTRATION OF INSTRUMENT

WHEREAS Susan Kanyi Mutego (deceased), is registered as
proprictor of that piece of land containing 0.1200 hectare or
thereabouts. known as Ruiru Mugutha Block 1/T. 3515, situate in the
district of Thika, and whereas the chief magistrate’s court at Kiambu
in succession cause No. 248 of 2015, has issued grant of letters of
administration to (1) Jane Wairimu Mutego and (2) Hellen Wanjiru
Kimama, and whereas the said title deed issued earlier to the said
Susan Kanyi Mutego (deceased) has been reported missing or lost,
notice is given that after the expiration of thirty (30) days from the
date hereof, provided no valid objection has been received within that
period, I intend to dispense with the production of the said land title
deed and proceed with registration of the said instrument of R. L. 19
and R. L. 7 and upon such registration the land title deed issued earlier
to the said Susan Kanyi Mutego (deceased), shall be deemed to be
cancelled and of no effect. :

Dated the 11th December, 2015. -
P. K. KIMANI,

MR/8473193 Land Registrar, Thika District.

i
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GAZETTE NOTICE No. 9187

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
{No. 3 of 2012)

REGISTRATION OF INSTRUMENT

WHEREAS Juilias Mbithuka Kyalo (deceased), of P:O. Box c/o
Chief, Mmsymil.oca(ion Kisasi, Kitui in the Republic of Kenya, is

of that piece of land known as

regisiered ]

xxmmmuz? situate in the distict of Kitui, and whereas
wufficient evidence adduced proves that the said land title .deed was
Mlﬁaiywqum and whereas all efforts made to compel the
registered proprietor to surrender the land title deed in respect of the
udpsweofhndwﬁhelmdmglm‘hmfnhd notice is given that
after the expiration of thirty (30) days from the date hereof, provided
mo valid objection has been received within that peried, { imtond to
dispense with the production of the said land tifle doed and give a land
itte deed to the rightful owner, Mwambu Singi @D/7415289), and
mpon such registration, the land title deed issued earlier to the said
phall be deemed 10 be cancelied and of no effect.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
MR/84T3128

F. M. MUTHUI,
Land Registrar, Kitui District.

GAZETTE NOTICE M. 9188

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.30f2012)

REGISYRATION OF INSTRUMENT

WHEREAS Taiyo Mwita, ks registered as proprietor of that piece
of land containing 4.3 or thereabout, kmown as
Bukira/Buhirimorono/1005, situate in the district of Kuria, and
whereas the land registrar, Siaya, and whereas the said land has been
mubdivided, and whereas the land title deed issued carlier to Taiyo
Mwita cannot be traced, notice is given that after the expiration of
shirty (30) days from the date hereof, provided no valid objection has
been received within that period, I intend to dispense with the
production of the said land title deed and proceed with the registration
of the said instrument, and upon sych registration, the land title deed
issued earlier to the said Taiyo Mwita, the shall be deemed to be
cancelled and of no effect.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.

L.N. MOCHACHE,

MR/8473170 Land Registrar, Kuria District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9189

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 6f2012)

REGISTRATION OF INSTRUMENT

WHEREAS Mwatsuma Kalama Mwatsuma, of PO, Box 532,
Kilifi in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor of that piece
of land containing 3.98 hectares or thereabout, known as
Mwapula/Magogoni/596, situate in the district of Kilifi, and whereas
#he above named proprictor has executed a deed of indemnity in
favour of the Govemment, claiming ownership of the said parcel of
land citing that the registered proprietor is deceased, notice is given
that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date hereof,

provided no valid objection has been received within that period, 1

sméend to proceed with the registration of the said instrument of
fndemnity and register the name of Stephen Mramba Mwatsuma
{AD/2150677), as presented in the lands registry.

Dated the 1 1th December, 2015.
4 J.T.BAO,
MR/8473203 Land Registrar, Kilifi District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9190

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No.3 of 2012)

REGISTRATION OF INSTRUMENT

WHEREAS (1) Kalama Mwatsuma Kalama, (2) Chugu Mwatsuma
Kalama and (3) Chengo Mwatsuma Kalama, all of P.O. Box 532,

Kilifi in the Republic of Kenya, is registered as proprietor of that piece
of land containing 7.71 hectares or thereabout, known as
Mwapula/Magogoni/594, situate in the district of Kilifi, and whereas
the above named proprietor has executed a deed of indemnity in
favour of the Government, claiming ownership of the said parcel of
land citing that the registered proprietor is deceased, notice is given
that after the expiration of sixty (60) days from the date hereof,
provided no valid objection has been received within that period, 1
intend to proceed with the registration of the said instrument of
indemnity and register the names of (1) Nelson Nyoka Kalama
(ID/11567037), (2) Sylvester Fondo Chugu (ID/2155889) .and (3)
Johnson Chengo Kasiwa (ID/23839883), as presented in the lands
registry.
Dated the 11th December, 2015.
'J.T.BAO,

MR/8473203 . Land Registrar, Kilifi District.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9191

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(M. 3 of 2012)

REGISTRATION OF INSTRUMENT

WHEREAS Tennyson Nyaga R. Ngari, is registéred as proprietor
W asbsolute ‘ownership Wmerest of that piece of land known as
Evirore/Ngwithi/ 1727, situsiet in the district of Mbeere, and whereas an
spppesl to @ minister case vide CLR/R/4/Vol. X1/150 dated 18th
Eeecember, 1997, has ordered that the said piece of land be transferred
to Lameck Nyaga, amd whereas all efforts made to compel the
imgistered proprietor to surrender the land title deed to the land
wegistrar have failed, notice is given that after the expiration of thirty
{30) days from the date hereof, provided no valid objection has been
received within that period, I intend to dispense with the production of
#he said land title deed and proceed with the registration of the said
instrument of transfer and issue a land title deed to the said Lameck
Nyaga, and upon such registration the land title deed issued earlier to
the said Tennyson Nyaga R. Ngari shall be deemed as cancelled and of
no effect.

Dated the 11th December, 2015.
N.K.NYAGA,
MR/8473101 Land Registrar, Mbeere District.

GAZETTE NOTICE N0. 9192

THE LAND REGISTRATION ACT
(No. 3 of 2012)
REGISTRATION OF INSTRUMENT

WHEREAS (1) Charles Wesley Muyodi and (2) Prisca Muyodi,
both of P.O. Box 1039900100, Nairobi in the Republic of Kenya, are
registered as proprietors of that piece of land known as South
Teso/Chakol/1362, situate in the district of Busia, and whereas the
senior principal magistrate’s court in land dispute No. 5 of 2011, has
ordered that the land title deed in respect of the said piece of land be
cancelled and registered in the names of (1) Vincent Odhiambo, (2)
Fredrick Odhiambo Osongi, (3) Bonface Okoth Odhiambo and (4)
Victor Ochieng Odhiambo, and whereas all efforts made to compel the
registered proprietors to surrender the land title deed in respect of the
said piece of land to the registrar have failed, notiee is given that after
the expiration of thirty (30) days from the date hereof provided no
valid objection has been received within that period, I intend to
dispense with the production of the said land title deed and proceed
with registration of the instrument of transfer executed by the
executive officer of the court and issue a land title deed to the said (1)
Vincent Odhiambo, (2) Fredrick Odhiambo Osongi, (3) Bonface
Okoth Odhiambo and (4) Victor Ochieng Odhiambo, and upon such
registration the land title deed issued earlier to the said (1) Charles
Wesley Muyodi and (2) Prisca Muyodi, shall be deemed to be
cancelled and of no effect.

" Dated the 11th December, 2015.
x T. CHEPKWESI, .
MR/8473315 Land Registrar, Busia District.
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GAZETTE NOTICE N0. 9193
KENYA REVENUE AUTHORITY

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON THE KENYA REVENUE AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Revenue Authority set out heremn, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2014, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows; statement of comparison
of budget and actual amounts and revenue collection statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Sections 14 and 8 of the Public Audit Act,
2003. :

I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statement to the Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of
Section 13 of the Public Audit Act, 2003. ’

. Auditor-General’s Responsibility " ) >

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements, based on the audit and report in accordance with the provisions of Section 15
(2) and (3) of the Public Audit Act, 2003 and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution of Kenya. The audit was
conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions. Those standards require compliance with ethical requirements
and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessment, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Authority's intenal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified audit opinion.
Basis for Qualified Opinionl’

1.0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Land without Title Deeds

The financial statements of the Authority reflect land and building with a net book value of Kshs. 9,533,366,000 as at 30" June 2014, as disclosed in
Note 8(i). Included in the balance of Kshs. 9,533,366,000 are seventeen (17) parcels of land without title deeds in various parts of the country valued
at Kshs. 378,000,000 with buildings valued at Kshs. 829,050,000, which were transferred to the Authority by the Government at inception in 1995.
The net book value of Kshs. 9,533,366,000, however excludes one (1) unvalued parcel of land in MachakosCounty without title deed and which was
similarly transferred to the Authonty by the Government in 1995, The balance further excludes an unvalued parcel of land in Taveta County without
title deed, and another in ShimoniKwale County, which is registered in the name of East Africa Common Services Authority. In the circumstances, it
has not been possible to confirm the ownership status of the 20 parcels of land, and that the property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.
12,315,101,000 is fairly stated as at 30 June 2014.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the effect of the matter disclosed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Kenya Revenue Authority as at 30 June 2014, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the
year ended 30 June 2014, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year ended, in accordance with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards, and comply with Kenya Revenue Authority Act. (Cap 469) of the Laws of Kenya.

Dated the 4th August, 2015.

EDWARD. R. 0. OUKO,
Auditor-General, Nairobi.

i it ¥
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KENYA REVENUE AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

: 2013/2014 2012/2013

: NOTE Kshs'000 Kshs'000
REVENUE

Revenue from non- exchange transactions

Agency Income ! 3 13,651,582 13,201,230
Deferred grant income amortisation 23 136,611 72,180
Revenue from exchange transactions )

Commissions Income 4(a) 812,570 744,978
Interest Income 361,228 186,484
Sale of Number Plates ) 402,364 322,862
Other Incomes ) o 4(b) 280,128 265,104
TOTAL REVENUE 15,644,483 14,792,838
EXPENDITURE
Administrative Expenses 5 13,746,965 12,681,690
Operating Expenses 6 932,003 802,925
Maintenance Expenses 7 164,902 204,137
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 14,843,876 13,688,752
Other gains/(losses) .

Loss on sale of assets (580) -(2,132)
SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 800,033 1,101,954

The statement of Comprehensive Income is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statement set out below

KENYA REVENUE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2014

NOTE

Assets

“Current Assets
Cash and Bank Balances 13
Debtors and Receivables 10
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equpment 8
Intangible Assets 9
Amount due from Treasury 11
Security Deposits 12
Total Amets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Creditors and Payables 14
Leave Pay Provision 15
Deferred Income Amortisation 23 "=
Non Current Liabilities
Contribution to Govt Pension Fund 16
Designated Fund 18
Deferred Grants Income . 23
Total Liabilities
Net Assets
Capital grants by the Treasury 17
Accumulated Fund

* Revaluation Reserve 8

Total net assets and liabilities

2013/2014
Kshs '000

7,122,465
467,025

7,589,490

12,315,101
110,038
2,123 899
1,991 883

16,540,921

24,130,411

2,681,337

1,004,327
136,611

3,822,275

26,991
240,980

218,696

486,667

4,308,942

19,821,469

12,948 236
2,580,549

4,292 684

19,821 469

24,130,411

2012/2013
Kshs '000

3,025,385
707877
3,733,262

12,154,722
36,158
3,142,677
1,981,892
17315449

21,048,711

1,152229
763,687
72,180

1,988,096

27,034
260,134
226 444
513,612

2,501,708
18,547,003

12,377,258
1,780,516
4,389;229
18,547,003

21,048,711

The statement of Financial Position is to read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statement set out below

J. K. Njiraini, MBS |
Commissioner General

Date 2 September, 2014 ]

Major (Rtd) Marsden Madoka, EGH T S S R s SR e
Chairman

Date 2 September, 2014

The notes set out form an integral part of the Financial Statements
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KENYA REVENUE AUTHORITY -

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Capital Graats by Acommsminted Revalmation Total
Fregsry, Fumd Reserve Fund
NOTE _Kshs'o00 Kshn' 008 Kshs' 008 &’“

1 July 2012 as previously reported 11934431 50632 4/485.774 RS T Y]
Prior year adjustment 23 (493,839) 144,930 - (343,909
* 1 July 2012 as restated o A0S 678,562 ARG THE 16504508
Contribution for the year 956,666 - - 956,666
Charge for the year - - - (96,546) (96.546)
Surplus for the year = 1,101 95 - - 1,101,954

AL 30 June 2013 : L788,5% 48228
1 July 2013 as previously reported 12,892,992 1,563 406 4,389 2% 18,845 626
Prior year adjustment > (515,733) 217,11 - (298,623)
1 July 2013 as restated 725 E, 780,536, "4,38827%
Contribution for the year ¥F 570,977 - - 50977
Charge for the year - - (96,545) (96,545),
Surplus for the year - 800,033 - 800,033 -
At 30 June 2014
The statement of Changes in Net Assels is to be read in conjunction. with the notes to and forming pert of the financial statement set out below
KENYA REVENUE AFFHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FL.OWS
FOR THE YEAR: ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

) ‘ 200326 20122003

NOFE - Kshs " 080 Ksha 004

CASH FLOWS FROM: OPERATING ACTIVETIES
Surplus for the year 800,033 1,101,954
Non- cash movements
Depreciation 8 762 4067 596,588
Amortisation. ) * 29,645 20,382
Increase in Amortisation of Deffered.Income b (136,611) (72,188)
Loss on disposal of Assets 580 2,132
Increase in Security Depesits 7 . (%991) (83.597)
Decrease/ (Increase) in Debtars and receivables 1,259 630 (1,421,214
Increase in Creditors and payables 1,768,707 %10, 1L
Net cash fiows from operating activities HATS 00 ) 5 P5T 544
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITEES
Purchase of Property, Flant & Equipment & (930,323). (770,307
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment L& 2,658
Net cash flows from investing activities (936, 340) ) .
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES . .
Contribution by the Treasury ¥ 510997 . 956,566
Decrease in designated Funds 8 (%1549, (33,329
Net cash flows from financing activities T I3 25,398

NET INCREASE IN CASH: AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4057008
Cash andicash equivalents at 1 July ‘ 3,005,385 1813652

CASH AND-CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30.JUNE ¢ : ] 'FM : m

The statement:of Cash Flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to.and-forrning part:of the- financial: stafement: set. out below
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
ORIGINAL FINAL -ACTUAL PERFORMANCE
COMPARABLE
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET BASIS PAFFERENCE
2013/2014 ADDITIONS 2013/2014 2013/2014 2013/2014
KSHS '060 KSHS '000 KSHS '000 KSHS '000 KSHS '000
INCOME :
Agmcy fees 12,528,591 1,000,000 13,528,591 13,528 591 -
Bomus Income - - - 122,991 -(122.991)
Road Maintcaance levy 588,960 - 588,960 563,255 25,705
Salg of Number plates 336571 - 336,571 402 364 " {65,793)
Sale of Tamper- Proof seals 20872 - 20872 21347 {475)
Petmoleum Development levy 41320 - 41,320 - 41,320
Dooument Processing Fees 30,991 - 30,991 26217 4,774
intepest income 49516 42428 91,944 361,228 (269 284)
Trassit Toll 10824 - 10,824 9,893 931
Rent receivable 7.024 - 7024 16,745 (9.720)
Pubfiic Overtime 2,037 8 2037 2,144 (107)
Insttutional houses — rent 98,293 (42,428) 55,865 71217 (15.352)
Aviation Revenue 73923 - 73923 69,443 4480
i@r Levy 30,845 - 30,845 39328 (B484)
Air Passenger Service charge 127532 . 127,532 136,662 (9,130)
MiseeHaneous Income : 41,762 : 41,762 135 369 (94,107)
_I?eﬁmd[m&nom’saﬁon - - - 136,611 (136,611)
Total Operationa! Income - 14,233,401 1,000,000 15,233 401 15,643,904 (410,583)
STAFF COSTS:
Basic pay 6,400,244 (106,698) 6.293,546 10,168,511 (3.874 965)
Other Alowances 4,565,089 (122 209) 4 442 880 - 4,442 880
Total Siaff Salaries and .
ANewances 10,965,333 (228,908) © 10,736 425 10,168,511 567915
OPERATIONAL Expenses: :
Staff Welfare Expenses 23851 39,993 63,844 16,928 46916
_ll_oﬁcal Expenses 426,806 - 426 806 508 364 (81,558)
Traiieg Expenses 155398 216056 371454 193,339 178,115
Uniform & Laundry Expenses 1,672 (266) 1,406 . 2206 (800)
Travel & Actomodation 311,753 128 587 440 340 621281 (180,941)
Tramsfer Allowance 43 900 6,500 50,400 - 50,400
Uitilities Expenses 368,343 24364 393,207 386,199 7.008
Building Repairs & maintenance 29,187 77,591 106,779 85,651 21,128
Motsr Running Expenses 143 408 36,764 180,172 161 063 19,110
Mot boat running Expenses 18,603 3,700 22,303 6,548 15,755
Scamner Expenses 92,114 - 92,114 72,703 19411
Rents & Rates 141,877 (875) 141 001 125937 15,065
Computer Expenses 200,599 96 857 297 455 209,374 88,081
Secwrity Expenses 252,161 112,686 364,787 349917 14870
Insugance Expenses 64237 (29,995) 34,242 81,102 (46,861)
Public Relations Expenses 28,982 38 465 67447 74,249 (6,802)
Taxpayers Education 51,692 17,259 68,951 63,770 5,181
Conpultancy 47 308 49,160 96 468 . 94,599 1,869
Secaptarial Expenscs 79307 19007 98314 32,738 65,576
Bank Charges 96,180 50,234 146,414 © 114089 32,325
Cory' strategy and review conf’ exp 51,971 20,029 72,001 10,546 61455
Offipe Running Expenses 155326 28 832 244,157 198,707 45 450
Printing & Stationery Expenses 56,278 12,790 69 D67 77834 (8B,766)
Consumable Stores Expenses 19217 (732) | 18,485 16,417 2068
Materials & Eupplies Expenses 324 891 8,080 332971 376,352 (43,382)
Enfarcement Expenses 27,129 8.765 35894 56 35838
Labaratory Expenses 5438 3,600 9038 3339 . 569
' TO?_AL Operational Expenses 3,268,068 1,027 449 4335510 3883307 453,202
TOTAL Recurrent Expenses 14,233 401 798541 15,071,935 14,051 818 609614
Depreciation Expenses . 700,000 700,000 792,053 (92,853
SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD (700,000) 201,459 (538,534) 800,033 (928 864)

The statement of comparison of Budget and Actual amounts should be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial

statemnent set out below
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The Authority’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSAS). The financial statements are presented in Kenya shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency of the Authority and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (Ksh000). The accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of tustorical cost, unless stated otherwise. The cash flow statement is prepared using the
indirect method. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

Revenue Recognition
i)  Revenue from non-exchange transactions

In accordance with the Kenya Revenue Authority Act CAP 469, income to the Authority is “such amounts not exceeding 2% as
may be determined by the Minister each financial year” of the total estimated revenue to be collected by the Authority on behalf
of the Exchequer. In addition, the Authority 1s entitled to.a Bonus of 3% of the surplus revenue collected above the estimates and
also ‘earns income from other activities. p

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions
Finance Revenue

Finance revenue comprises interest receivable from fixed deposits and security deposits. Finance revenue is recognised as it
accrues in profit or loss, using the effective yield method.” .

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Commission revenue

Commission incomes comprise agency fees charged on collections on behalf of regu]atory bodies.

Other operating income

Other income is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the recipient and the amounts of

revenue can be measured reliably.

Development funding and capital grants by the Treasury

Grants by the Treaisury in form of assets or funding for acquisition of major assets or development projects are recognized as a
financing reserve when received. No repayment of the financing is expected by the Authority.

Property, Plant and Equipment

All categories of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and annual impairment
losses. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of each asset to its residual value where applicable, over the-
expected useful life of the asset in equal instalments. A full year’s depreciation is charged in the year of purchase but no charge is -
made in the year of disposal.

The estimated useful life is as follows: -

Plant & Machinery 4 8 yeafs

Equipment/Furniture/Fittings 8 years

Boats 8 years -

Motor Vehicles 5 years (with a 10% residual value)

Computers 3 years ’
Computer Software 3 Years

Buildings ! 40 years

Leasehold land . Over the remaining lease period

Gains or losses on property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying value and are taken into account in
determining the surplus / (deficit) for the year.
Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of various computer software systems purchased for use by the Authonty The Authority recognises
Intangible Assets acquired separately at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over their
useful lives as estimated by management from time to time. .

Cash and Cash eqhivalents

For purposés of the cash flow statement, cash and cash e:qmva]ems comprise cash in hand and short-term deposits held with banks
Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are converted into Kenya Shillings at rates ruling at the transaction dates. Assets
and liabilities at the balance sheet date, which are expressed in foreign currencies, are translated into Kenya Shillings at the rate ruling

on that date. The resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized on a net basis, differences are dealt with in the income
and expenditure statement in the financial year in which they arise.

(g) Employee benefits costs

(i) Retirement benefit obligations

The Authority operates as hybrid pension scheme with a defined contribution plan for the permanent and pensionable employees.
Payments to the scheme are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
The scheme is funded by contributions from both the entity and employees. The entity and all its employees also contribute to the
National Social Security Fund, which is a defined contribution scheme.

ii) Other entitlements

Employees’ entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision 1s made for the estimated
liability for annual leave at the reporting date.
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(h) Inventories )
All consumable stocks held for use in operations are expensed on purchase
(i) Receivables

Receivables are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Objective
evidence of impairment of the receivables is when there is significant financial difficulty of the counter party or when there is a default or
delinquency in payment according to agreed terms. When a receivable is considered uncollectible it is written off. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited in the Statement of Financial Performance. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognized n the Statement of Financial Performance.
(j) Payables _

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinaly course of business from suppliers.
Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cyc!e of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

(k) Provisions
Provisions for liabilities are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) resulting from a past event, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
monetary value of the obligation.
()  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in applying the Authority’ accounting policies
" In the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies, management has made estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial period. Estimates and )udgmcnts are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that aré believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These are
dealt with below:
Critical accounting judgments in applying the Authority’s pollcles
Impairment losses
At each reporting date, the entity reviews the camrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the entity estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Plant and equipment )

Pmpeny and equipment is depreciated over its useful life taking into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and
residual values are assessed at the reporting date and may vary depending on a number of factors. In reassessing asset lives, factors such as
technological innovation, product life cycles and maintenance

programmes are taken into account. Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining life of the asset and
projected disposal values.

Contingent liabilities

The directors evaluate the status of any exposures on a regular basis to assess the probability of the entity incurring related liabilities. However,
provisions are only made in the financial statements where, based on the directors’ evaluation, a present obligation has becrl established.

3. REVENUE FROM NON EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

2013/2014 - 201272013

Kshs '000 Kshs '000

Agency Income 13,528,591 13,201,230
Bonus 122,991 =
Amortisation of grants deferred Income 136,611 72,180
: . 13,651,719 13,273,410

The Agency Income and Bonus are prowd:d in accordance with the provisions of the Kenya Revenue Authority Act CAP 469. Deferred i incomes are
the inflows of economic benefits or services received/receivable from assets donated to the Authority from the World bank.

4. REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
a. Commissions Income

—

20132014 2012/2013
Kshs ‘000 Kshs '000
Road Maintainance Levy Commission ) 563,255 500,032
Aviation Revenue Commission 69,443 71,778
Air Passenger Service Charge Commission ] 136,662 125611
Sugar Development Levy Commission 39 43,796
Insurance Deductions Commission 3,883 3,761
812,570 744,978

b. Other Incomes -
2013/2014 2012/2013
‘ Kshs '000 Kshs ‘000
IDF & PDL Income ! 35,883 34,030
Sale of Tamperproof Seals ) 21,347 16,843
Public Overtime . _ 2,144 2,395
Document Processing Fees 26217 32994
Staff Housing / Rental Income 71217 50,646
Property Rental Income 16,745 8,075
Miscellaneous Income ** 106,576 120,121
280,128 265,104

**+  Miscellaneous income consists of income from sale of tender documents, revenue stamps, staff identity cards, PSV Badges, training

school activities and road transit toil collections.
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5. ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS
a.  Staff and Employee Costs
2013/2014 2012/2013
Kshs '000 Kshs '000
Salaries & Allowances 9,927 870 9,485,940
Provision for Staff Leave 240,641 188,681
Medical Expenses 508,364 592,656
10,676,875 10267277
| b.  Other Administrative Costs
2013/2014 2012/2813
‘ Kshs ‘000 Kshs ‘000
! Travelling & Accomodation 621,281 487,184
‘ Utilities 386,199 299,711
Staff Welfare 16,928 26405
| Printing & Stationery 77,834 74508
Consultancy 94,599 45,509
Computer Expenses 209374 212,151
Training 193339 112,504
Office Running Expenses 198,707 179438
Insurances 81,102 55,789
Board Expenses (sub-note bl) 21,793 26,119
Entertainment 10,546 14319
Consumable Stores 16417 22288
Security Expenses- 349917 238,221
Depreciation Charge 762.407 599 386
Ameortisation of Intangible Assets 29,645 20382
- 3,070,090 2414413
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS 13,746,965 12,681 650
(i} Board Expenses
2013/2014 201272813
' Kshs '000 - Kshs '000
Monthly Directors' fees 8,702 11,918
Sitting Allowances & Honararia 11,222 12,002
Accomodation & Travel Expenses 1,869 2,199
21,793 26,119
6. OPERATING EXPENSES
2013/2014 2012/2013
: Kshs '000 Kshs '000
Rent & Ratcs 125,936 122,042
Taxpayer Education 63,770 59,761
Motor Running Expenses 161,063 178,307
Advertising & Public Relations 74249 32,125
Secretarial Expenses 10,945 7.835
Uniforms & laundry 2,206 617
Materials and Supplies 376,352 387938
Bank Charges 114,089 1229
Containers & Sealing Expenses 56 7.821
Laboratory Expenses 3338 '5.250
932,003 862,925
7. MAINTENANCE EXPENSES
i 2013/2014 2012/2013
. Kshs '000 Kshs '000
Building Repair & Maintenance 85,651 - 26,465
Scanner Maintenance 72,702 167 916
Motor Boat Expenses 6,548 9,756
164,901 204,137
7 (a) Scanner expenses
: 201312014 2012/2013
| Kshs '000 Kshs '000
Annual Maintenance Contract 71,474 167,916
Routine Maintenance Expenses 1,228 -
72,702 167,916

L ima
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT.

W
OFFICE
LAND & PLANT& MOTOR BQUFMENT MOTOR
BUILDINGS MACHINERY VEHICLES FURNITURE COMPUTERS BOATS WIP  TOTAL
Kshs '000 Kshs '000  Kshs '000 Kshs '000 Kshs '000 Kshs'000  Kshs'080  Kshs '000
2013/2014 )
COST/VALUATION - .
1 Jul 2013 9,721,703 2,204 375 577976 988,023 1,609 826 604,468 1563432 17269303
- - 417352 52,593 362,181 s 563966 1020091
- - (7,600) - - - - (7,600)
er of WIP 731219 - - 5 2 - (7312719) -
June 2014 10,452,982 2,204,375 611,728 1,040,616 1972906 04468 1,399,119 . 187282293
655236 1,607,628 466058 614295 1,440,191 331,673 - 5115081
167835 193084 28,843 84919 214,180 73,547 -- 762407
96,545 = w - = = = 96,545
- & 6,840) - = - - (6,840)
919,616 1,800,712 &,ﬁz 99214 15654,371 05219 - 5967,193
9,533,366 403 563 123467 341402 317435 199248 196,119 12315181
7,360,800 2204375 585424 767494 1381275 612040 1308430 14219838
- - 40446 212291 89,062 . 404576 . 746375
= . 47.894) - - i (7,572) - (55466)
2359056 2 - 5 : : - 2,359,056
1,847 - - 8238 139489 - . (148574) -
"~ 9.721,703 2204375 57157 88023 1509326 4468 1563432 17,269,802
368,034 1,414,544 485243 531639 1,335,398 265,698 - 4400556
121,886 193,084 23,920 82,656 104,793 73,547 s 599,886
96,545 - - - - 2 g 96,546
68,770 - - - - 68,770

Disposals - @305 ; - as» $077)
June 2013 655,236 1,607,628 466 858 614,295 1,440,191 331573 - _S5115881
:ém i .
June 2013 9,066 w647 111918 373,728 1695635 272795 1563 A3 115472
) Land & buildings

The Authority received several leaschold properties (land and buildings) from the government at inception in 1995. The Authority was not
required to pay for the property hence did not incur any cost on the same. To recognize the property in its books, the Authority did a
professional valuation of the land and building in 1996 and the values were adopted in the Authority‘s statement of financial position. This was
done by recognizing land and buildings assets in the statement of Financial Position.

The Authority is yet to receive title documents for some 18 pieces of leaschold land received Government. These properties are at various
stages of registration with the Commissioner of Lands. Another title deed is in the name of East African Common Services Authority (EACSA)
and the process transfer of the title is ongoing. The Authority also bought one parcel of land in Taveta in 2010 for construction of a border
station and is in'the process of obtaining the title. .

(i) Fully depreciated assets

Included in the assets are fully depreciated assets comprising of Motor Vehicles whose original cost was Kshs 451,489,258 with a residual
‘value of Kshs 45,148,925, Motor Boats whose cost is Kshs 16,091 088, Computers whose cost is Kshs 1,329,466,725, Office Equipment of
Kshs 172,648 521, Laboratory Equipment Kshs 17,500,090, Plant and Machinery Kshs 659,703,883 and Furniture and Fittings of Kshs.
170,883,090 whose book value is nil. The total notional depreciation charge for the assets is Kshs. 645,818,353 (2013- Kshs. 632,292 988).
Most of these assets are in use by the Authority.

() Capital Work In Progress

2013/2014 ' 2012/2013

Kshs '000 Kshs '"000

Electronic Cargo Tracking System 77612 77612
Intergrated Tax Management System 917274 684,686
Cstoms Revenue Accounting Module 4,664 - 4,664
Departments ERP System 5276 5276
aluations Database system 23,705 17,791
Renovation of JKIA Offices . 8,386 5212
Simba Transformation Project 6,342 -
Biometric & Times Towers Secuirty System 11,625 -
Emterprise Storage System Upgrade 22,626 -
Exciseable Goods Management System (EGMS) 318,608 -
Common Cash Receipting System - 63,691
Langata Staff Houses Renovation - 594435

Renovation of Training Institute (KESRA) ' - 110,065
- ’ - 1,396,119 1563432
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2013/2014 2012/2013
COST Kshs "000 Kshs '"000
1 July 230413 183,085
Additions 103,525 47,328
30 June 333,938 230413
AMORTISATION -
1July 194,255 173,873
for the year 290645 20,382
30 June 223,900 194,255
NET BOOK VALUE e
30 June 110,038 36,158

The intangible assets are made up of different computer software in use by the Authority. Included in the Intang;ble Assets are fully amortised assets
whose original cost was Kshs. 169,267,025, (2013- Kshs, 169,267,025).

'10. DEBTORS AND RECEIVABLES

Trade Debtors

Other Agency debtors
Rent Receivable
Interest Receivable

Other Debtors
Staff Debtors

Prepayments
Other Debtors

Debtors Total

2013/2014
Kshs '000

229,893

646
s FOA
236,306

94,329

8,878

127,512

230,719

467,025

2012/2013
Kshs '000

230,240

8033
238,274

* 90,181
8,256
371,167

— 469503
_ 707877

Other agency debtors represent outstanding commission on collection of revenues on behalf of other organisations. Staff debtors mainly comprise of
outstanding travel imprests, loans for acquisition of laptops and medical advances.

11. AMOUNT DUE FROM TREASURY

1 July

Accrued in the year

Bonus earned

Amount received in the year
30 June

2013/2014
Kshs '000
3,142,677
13,528,592
122,991
(14.670,361)
2,123,899

201272013
Kshs '000
2,000,907
13,201,230

(12,059 460)
3,142,677

The amount represents outstanding agency commission, bonuses ecarned and payments made on behalf of the Treasury.

12. SECURITY DEPOSITS

Savings & Loan (k) Ltd
Housing Finance
National Bank of Kenya Ltd

2013/2014
Kshs '000
1,462 865
375,736
153,281

1,991 883

- 2012/2013
Kshs '000

1,466,727

364 909

150,256

1,981 892

The deposits with Savings & Loans and Housing Finance are placed as security against staff mortgage advances, while the National bank deposits are

placements against staff car loans.

13. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in Hand
Cash at Bank
Fixed Deposits

The deposits are further analysed as follows:-

National Bank of Kenya
Cooperative Bank of Kenya
World Bank project Account - NBK

2013/2014 2012/2013
: Kshs '000 Kshs '000
911 355
1,076,803 566974 -
6,044,751 2458056
7,122 465 3,025,385
The fixed deposits are made up of one month deposits in commercial banks. The maturity period for the deposits is between July and August 2014.
2013/2014 2012/2013
Kshs '000 Kshs '"000
2,801.814 1221914
3231075 1221,774
11,862 14368
6,044,751 2 A58 056
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14. CREDITORS AND OTHER PAYABLES

2013/2014 2012/2013

Kshs '000 Kshs '000

Trade Creditors and Accounts Payables 1,862,350 _ 813,081
Staff Creditors o 685,116 306,945
Payroll Deduction Creditors 108,787 22,002
Taxes 25,084 ' 10,201
* 2,681,337 1,152,229

Trade creditors and accounts payables represent the outstanding payments to suppliers and other parties, also included in accounts payables is Kshs.
364 million refundable to the National Treasury in respect of commission erroneously recovered for collection of Railway Development Levy (RDL).
The amount has been subsequently remitted to the National Treasury. Payroll deductions include outstanding amounts for statutory deductions, loans
SACCOS and others. Staff creditors comprise of unpaid staff bonus, outstanding payments due to staff and funds for staff welfare associations. The
general provisions relate to utilities, staff medical expenses and staff bonus.

15. LEAVE PAY PROVISIONS

2013/2014 2012/2013

Kshs '000 Kshs '000

Balance as at 01 July 763,687 575,006

Charge for the year 240,640 188,681

Balance as at 30 June 1 27 763,687
16. CONTRIBUTION TO GOVERNMENT PENSION FUND

2013/2014 ' -2012/2013

; g Kshs '000 i Kshs "000

1 July F 27034 27079

Payment to the Treasury in the year (43) i (45)

30 June N 26,991 27,034

This amount relates to contributions made to the Government pension during the nine-month secondment period from October 1995 o June 1996 for
pensionable staff who were transferred from the Treasury to the Authority. The amount falls due for payment on retirement of an officer and is then
transferred to the Treasury to facilitate processing of the pension.

17. CAPITAL GRANTS BY THE TREASURY

20132014 20122013

; Kshs '000 Kshs '000

1 July . 12,377,258 10,961,257
Border Stations & KESRA Rehabilitation 13,000 441270
Excise Management System 82978 416,666
Electronic Fiscal Devises Management System 250,000 -
ICT Strategy ) 25,000 -
Business Continuity Planning 100,000 . -
Times Tower Security . 100,000 -
Systems Security Software & Biometric System - 53,730
Funds for Integrated Tax Management System - - ; 45000
Leasehold Land (Reinstatement) - 459,335
World bank funded projects - ) -
30th June . 12948236 - 12,377,258

The amounts represent assets and asset funds provided by the Treasury. The Treasury separately funds the major reform and modemization
programmes undertaken by the Authority in all departments for revenue enhancement and efficient service delivery. The key projects include an
Electyonic Fiscal Devises Management system that will interconnect ETR machines to a centralized server, implementation of the Disaster Recovery
& Business Continuity Planning, enhancement of security at Times Tower building and rehabilitation of the Authority’s Training Institute and border
stations.

18. DESIGNATED FUNDS

LEGAL CLAIM - WORLD BANK ; TOTAL
FUND - FUNDS (EATTF)

- Kshs '000 Kshs '000 Kshs '000

1 July 2013 233,627 26,507 260,134
Funds Received - - -
Interest Earned 100 100
Amount Spent (16,647) (2,606) (19,253)
Transfer to Equity Contribution - -
30 June 2014 216,980 24,000 240,980

The legal claim funds are received from the Treasury for settling legal awards against the Authority in revenue related court cases.
The World Bank funds are disbursements to the local account for the East African Trade and Transportation Facilitation Project Fund (EATTF),
provided to improve the infrastructure for monitoring movement of goods for the facilitation of trade in East Africa.

19. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

During the year ended 30™ June 2013, Kshs 1,046.2 Million (2012 Kshs. 1 045.7 Million) was paid as contributions to the staff pensions scheme.
The scheme changed from a defined benefit plan to a Hybrid scheme with a defined benefit section and a defined contribution section with effect
from 1 July 2005. Under the defined benefit scheme, the employer contribution on aetuarial advice was maintained at 13.2% per member while a rate
of 14% was adopted for the defined contribution scheme. Emj r]oyees contribute 7.5% of their salaries for both sections of the scheme. The value .
placed on the existing final assets per the last valuation of 30™ June 2013, was Kshs. 11.476 Billion (2012, Kshs. 7.817 Billion) while the present
value of past service liabilities at that date was Kshs 10.329 Billion (2012 Kshs. 7.739 Billion).
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20. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
20132014 201272013
Kshs '000 Kshs '600
Approved and contracted ’ 825910 1075672
Approved and not contracted 660,126 108,938
L 1486836 1,184,616
21. RECURRENT COMMITMENTS
20132014 201272813
Kshs '008 Kshs '080
30 June 1,063 357 128501
The above represents items and activities approved and contracted but not yet delivered.
22. EMPLOYEES
The number of employees at the end of the year was;

) ' ' 2013/2014 261272013
30 June . 4,729 4,783
23. DEFERRED GRANT INCOME RECONCILIATION
These relate to grants from the World Bank under the Government of Kenya used efficient and effective collection of taxes.

i} Deferred grant income reconciliation ‘
2013/2014 201272013
Kshs "000 Ksis '000
. At 1 July as previously reported ! : - -
Prior year adjustment - ' 298,624 348,909
At 1 July as restated 298,624 348,909
Received in the year 193293 . 21,895
Amortisation (136,611) (%m;
At 30 June 355306
ii) Deferred grant income amortisation
Grant income to be amortised within one year 136,611 72,180
Grant income to be amortised after one year 218,696 : 226,444
At the end of the period 355,306 298,624
24. RELATED PARTIES
The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder in Kenya Revenue Authority.
During the year, the following transactions were carried out with related parties as analysed as follows:-
(a) Transaction :
; . /
- i) Government of Kenya
20132014 2012/2013
_ Kshs "000 Kshs ‘080
Capital Grants 764270 978,561
Agency Income P 13,651,582 13,201,230
14415852 14,179,791
ii) Key management compensation
: 2013/2014 201272013
Salaries and other short - term employment benefits 90,993 : 78,477
90,993 78477
ili) Directors’ remuneération
¢ 2013/2014 . 201272013
Fees and other Emoluments (note 5) 21,793 26,119
21,793 16,119
(b) Balances
" Due (to)/from related parties
2013/2014 201272013
Amount due from Treasury (note 11) 2,123,899 3,142,677
Contribution to Government pension fund (note 16) i (26,991) 27034
2,096,908 3,115,643

-_,‘I_
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FINANCIAL RISK & CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks and effects of changes in foreign cumrency. The
Authority’s' overall risk management programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the
potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk.

The Authority’s financial risk management objectives and policies are-detailed below:
(i) Credit risk

The Authority has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterpasty will be unable to pay amounts in fufl when due. Credit risk arises from
cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks, as well as agency and other receivables.

The cammying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the Authority’s maximum cxposure to credit risk is made up
as follows:

Fully Performing Past Due Impaired
Kzhs 080 Kshs 000 Kshs 000
At 30 Jume 2014
Receivables 476025 - -
Bank Balances 7,122 465 - to-
At 30 June 2013
‘Receivables 707877 - -
‘Bank Balances 3025385 - -

The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal hence no allowance for uncollectible amounts has been recognised in Mﬁmncml
statements.

(i) Market risk

The board has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by the Authority on an ongoing basis, evaluate
and test the design and effectiveness of its intemal accounting and operational controls.
Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and foreign exchange rates which will
affect the Authority’s income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum. Overall responsibility for managing market
risk rests with the Audit Committee. .
The Authority’s Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk management policies (subject to review and
approval by Finance Committee) and for the day to day implementation of those policies. g
There has been no change to the Authority’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

(a) Foreign currency risk

T‘heAulhontyhnstnusuctma!cmncy exposures. Such exposure arises from foreign denominated bank balances.

Thecarrymgmmofdic..\uthomy s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:

Ksh Others Total
Shs ‘000 Sha ‘000 Shas ‘000

At 30 Jume 2014 _ ; .
Financial assets (Bank balances) ; 93,136 - 93,136
Payables - - -
Net foreign currency liability , 93,136 = 93,136
f = - L ] b= - oo 3

{b} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Authority’s financial condition may be adversely affected as a result of changes in interest rate levels. The
Authority's interest rate risk arises from fixed and security deposits. This exposes the Authority to cash flow interest rate risk.

“Management of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeayvoured to bank with institutions lhn oﬁu favourable interest rates.
Sensitivity analysis

The Authority analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity analysis. The sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk
assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remain constant. The analysis has been performed on the same basis as the prior
year.

Using the end of the year figures, the sensitivity analysis indicates the impact on the statement ofﬁnmmperfmmulfcmmﬂmﬂngmm
rates increase/decrease by five percentage (5% as a decrease/increase of KShs. 18,061,000 (2012: Kshs.9,324.000 ).

(ili) Price risk
The Authority does not hold investments that would be subject to price risk; hence this risk not relevant.
25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES '

These include:-
*  An amount of Kshs. 2 million included in utility deposits representing a bank guarantee to Kenya Power and Lighting for Times Tower
power supply.
*  An amount of Kshs 1,297,759 representing a guarantee to Telkom Kenya Limited for supply of telephone fucllilies in the Times Tower
building.

*  Pending legal cases and court awards.against the Authority estimated at Kshs 4,454,051,492 at the financial year end. The Treasury is
expected to meet the cost of settling the awards should they materialize.
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26. COMPARATIVES
Where necessary, comparatives have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.
KENYA REVENUE AUTHORITY

REVENUE COLLECTION BY DEPARTMENT 4
2013/2014 2012/2013
NOTE ACTUAL  TARGETd ACTUAL TARGET
Kshs 'million’ Kshs 'million' Kshs 'million’ Kshs 'million’
EXCHEQUER REVENUE COLLECTION
Customs Services Department 269,968 266389 T 220307 263,192
Domestic Taxes Department 626,335 631,163 536,831 576,201
Road Transport Department a 2935 3,598 2,407 5976
SUB-TOTAL. 899,238 901,150 759,546 845,369
AGENCY TAXES COLLECTION -
Customs Services Department b 61,863 59,787 38,409 33518
Domestic Taxes Department * ¢ 1,966 2,036 1,923 1,799
Road Transport Department d o 756 767 643 552
SUB-TOTAL ' 64,586 62,590 40,975 35869
GROSS TOTAL 963,823 963,740 800,521 881,239
NOTES

Agency Taxes comprises of the following:-
a) Customs Services Department - Road Maintenance Levy, Aviation Revenue, Petroleum Development Levy, Sugar Levy, Transit Toll among
others.

b) Doﬁlcstic Taxes Department - Sugar development levy, Land Rates, and Kenya Bureau of standard (Kebs) levy.
¢) Road Transport Department - Sale of number plates, TLB application fees, Driving tést fees,vehicle inspection fees among others.
d) The reported targets are the revised targets for the financial year

REVENUE COLLECTION MOVEMENT 2013/2014 2012/2013

SCHEDULE P
CSD DD RTD TOTAL CSD DID RTD TOTAL
Jeshs Feshs kshs kshs keshes beshes kshs beshs
“muillion’ ‘million’ | 'milion' | ‘'meilion’ “railior' ‘nellion' | ‘milion’ | ‘million'
EXCHEQUER
Cash in Transit brought forward - 1 July 1,400 224 -602 1,022 1,088 404 45 1,537
Cash from commercial banks/adjustment 357 534 891 -138 -138
Add: Collections for the year 270,032 626,258 3,691 899,981 220,307 536,820 2,407 759,534
Total amounts to be credited in CBK in the year 271,789 627,016 3,089 901,894 221395 537,086 2452 760,933
Less: Transfers to CBK 270,729 626,957 3669 901355| 219995 536,862 2,640 759497
: Transfers Banks/Principals - - 414 414
Total transfers within the year 270,729 626957 | 3,669 901,355 219,995 536,862 3,054 759911
Cash in Transit 30th June 1,060 59 -580 539 1.400 224 -602 1,022
AGENCY
Cash in Transit brought forward - 1 July 739 2900 64300 J411 815 - - 815
Cash from commercial banks/adjustment 354 398 - 293
Add: Collections for the year 61,876 1,966 - 63842 38,409 1,923 643 40,975
Total amounts to be credited in CBK in the year 62,969 2,393 . 643 65,253 39,517 1,923 643 41,790
Less: Transfers to CBK 54,676 2,080 - 56,756 32,933 1,894 - 34,827
: Transfers Banks/Principals 7,757 7,157 5,845 - 5845
Total transfers within the year 62,433 2,080 = 64,513 38,778 1,894 - 40,672
Cash in Transit 30th June 536 313 643 740 739 29 643 1,118
TOTAL
Cash in Transit bmught forward - 1 July 2,140 253 4] 2434 1,903 404 45 2,352
Cash from commercial banks/adjustment 711 932 - 1643 293 -138 - 155
Add: Collections for the year 331,909 628,224 3,691 963,824 258,717 538,743 3,050| 800,510
Total amounts to be credited in CBK in the year 334,760 629,409 3,732 967,901 260913 539,009 3,095 803,017
Less: Transfers to CBK 325405 629,037 3,669 958,111 252928 538,756 2640 794324
: Transfers Banks/Principals 1,757 - - 1,757 5,845 - 414 6,259
Total transfers within the year 333,162| 629,037 3669 965868| 258,773 538,756 3054 800,583
Cash in Transit 30th June 1,598 372 63 2,033 2,140 253 41 2434

NB: Both Exchequer and Agency Revenue for RTD are banked in the Exchequer Account.

.
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GAZETTE NOTICE NO, 9194
THE CONSTITUTION OF KENYA
THE ELECTIONS ACT

) (No. 24 of 2011)
ELECTIONS (GENERAL) REGULATIONS, 2012
THE INDEPENDENT ELECTORAL AND BOUNDARIES COMMISSION ACT, 2011
APPOINTMENT OF CONSTITUENCY RETURNING OFFICERS AND DEPUTY RETURNING OFFICERS FOR MAKUENI COUNTY ASSEMBLY AND BOMET

COUNTY WARD REPRESENTATIVES BY-ELECTIONS SCHEDULED FOR 2ND FEBRUARY, 201 6.

IN EXERCISE of the powers conferred by Articles 88 (4), 193 and 194 (1) (@) of the Constitution, section 1 of the Independent Electoral and
Boundaries Commission Act, 201 1, sections 19(4), 25, 26, 28, 33, 38 and 39 of the Elections Act, 2011 and Regulations 3 (1)-(6) of the Elections

(General) Regulations, the Independent Electoral and Boundaries Commission appoints the Returning Officers and Deputy Returning Officers named

in the 8th column of the Schedule for purposes of the 2nd February, 2016 by-election exercise for Members of Makueni County Assembly -

Masongalemi Ward and Bomet County Assembly-Nyangores Ward.

SCHEDULE
County | County Constituency |Constituency Caw Code  |Caw Name osition Name of Officer IID, No.
Code Name Code Name .
017 Makueni 88 Kibwezi East 437 |Masongaleni [Returning Officer| Titus Kitheka Msiemi 7814721
017 Makueni 88 Kibwezi East 437 Masongaleni [Deputy Retuming Mary Mutuku 27312593
Officer
036 Bomet 195 Chepalungu 972 [Nyangores  [Returning Officer Lilian Chepngetich 21638865
. 036 Bomet 195 Chepalungu 972 [Nyangores  [Deputy Returning| Alice Cherono Cheruiyot | 5097401
- Officer
Dated the 8th December, 2015.
AL H‘ASSA‘N,k
Chairperson.

PTG No. 2686/15-16

Independent Electoral and Boundaries Commission.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9195
THE CONSTITUTION OF KENYA, 2010

THE INDEPENDENT ELECTORAL AND BOUNDARIES
COMMISSION ACT, 2011

THE ELECTIONS ACT, 2011
ELECTIONS (VOTER REGISTRATION) REGULATIONS, 2012
THE FAIR ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION ACT, 2015

"APPOINTMENT OF A COMMITTEE TO CONSIDER THE REPORT OF THE
SPBAKER TO THE SENATE IN THE MATTER OF COMMISSION OF
BLECTORAL OFFENCES BY SENATOR MOSES WETANGULA

PURSUANT to the provisions of Articles 47, 83 and 88 (4) of the
Constitution of Kenya, sections 4, 8 and 28 of the Independent
Electoral and Boundaries Commission Act, 2011, sections 8, 9 and 87
of the Elections Act, 2011, Regulations 9 and 10 of the Elections
{Registration of Voters) Regulations, 2012 and sections 3 and 4 of the
Fair Administrative Action Act, 2015, the Independent Electoral and
Boundaries Commission hereby establishes a Committee to consider
the report of the Speaker to the Senate published vide Gazette Notice
No 7852 of 2015 containing the decision of the Supreme Court
envisaged under Section 87(1) of the Elections Act, 2011;

m Committee established is comprised of the following persons:

Thomas Letangile—Chairperson
Lilian Mahiri-Zaja —Member
Mohamed Alawi —Member
Chrispine Owiye —Secretary

Moses Kipkogei -—Assisting Counsel

The Committee shall—
_ (d) consider the report of the Speaker to the Senate; and,

(b) afford the person(s) affected or likely to be affected an
opportunity to make representations before it;

(c) afford the person(s) affected or likely to be affected the right to
representation by Advocate(s);

(d) regulate its own procedure including the place and time of
sitting and the mode of receiving representations; and,

(g) make recommendations to the Commission on or before 20th
January, 2016. ’

Dated the 8th December, 2015.
A. L. HASSAN,
Chairperson,

PTG No. 2686/15-16 Independent Electoral and Boundaries Commission,

GAZETTE NOTICE No. 9196
THE LEADERSHIP AND INTEGRITY ACT
(No. 19 of 2012)

LEADERSHIP AND INTEGRITY CODE FOR STATE OFFICERS IN THE
. OFFICE OF THE CONTROLLER OF BUDGET

Preamble

A Code for State officers in the Office of the Controller of
Budget pursvant to Section 37 and 38 of the Leadership and
Integrity Act, No. 19 of 2012 and to give effect to Chapter Six of
the Constitution of Kenya, 2010. The Code is intended to establish
standards of integrity and ethical conduct in the leadership of the
Office by ensuring that the State officers respects the values,
principles and requirements of the Constitution in the discharge of
their duties. )

PART I—-PRELIMINARY
1. Citation

This Code may be cited as the Leadership and Integrity
Code for State officers in the Office of the Controller of Budget.

2. Interpretation
In this Code, unless the context otherwise requires —
“Act” means the Leadership and Integrity Act, 2012;

“Accounting Officer” has the meaning and role assigned under
the Public Finance Management Act, 2012,

“Bank account” means an account maintained by a bank or
any other financial institution for and in the name of, or in the
name designated by, a customer of the bank or other financial
institution and into which money is paid or withdrawn by or for
the benefit of that customer or held in trust for that customer
and in which the transactions between the customer and the bank
or other financial institution are recorded,;

“Business Associate” means a person who does business with
or on behalf of a State officer and has express or implied autharity
from that State officer;

“Code” means the Leadership and Integrity Code for the
Office of the Controller of Budget;
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“Office” means the Office of the Controller of Budget
established under the Constitution of Kenya, 2010 and the
Independent Offices (Appointment) Act, 2011;

“Commission” means Ethics and Anti-Corruption Commission.

“Personal interest” means a matter in which a State
officer has a direct or indirect pecuniary or non- pecuniary
interest and includes the interest of his/her spouse, child, business
associate or agent;

“Regulations” means the Regulations made by the
Commission pursuant to Section 54 of the lgadershlp and
Integrity Act, 2012;

“Spouse” means a wife or husband;
“State officer” means the Controller of Budget
3. Application of the Code

This Code applies to State officers in the Office of the Controller
of Budget.

4. Application of the Constitution, the Public Officer Ethics Act,
2003 and the Independent Offices (Appointment) Act, 2011

(1) The provisions of Chapter Six of the Constitution shall form
part of this Code;

Unless otherwise provided in this Code, the provisions of
the Public Officers Ethics Act shall form part of this Code in so
far as they conform to the provisions of the Leadership and
Integrity Act, 2012.

5. Commencement of the Code
This Code shall commence upon publication in the Kenya Gazette.
6. State Officer to sign Code

(1) A State officer appointed to the Office shall sign and
commit to this Code at the time of taking oath of office or within
seven (7) days of assuming office.

(2) A serving State officer shall sign and commit to this code
seven (7) days after gazettement of the Code.

PART II— REQUIREMENTS
1. Rule of Law i

(1) A State officer shall respect and abide by the Constitution
and the law;

(2) A State officer shall carry out the duties of his/ her office in
accordance with the law;

(3) In carrying out the duties of his/her office, a State officer
shall not violate the rights and fundamental freedoms of any
person unless otherwise expressly provided for in the law and in
accordance with Article 24 of the Constitution.

8. Public trust

A State office is a position of public trust and the authority
and the responsibility vested in a State officer shall be
exercised by the State officer in the best interest of the Oﬂ"lcc and
the people of Kenya.

9. Responsibility and duties

Subject to the Constitution and any other law, a State officer
shall take personal responsibility for the reasonably foreseeable
consequences of any actions or omissions arising from the
discharge of the duties of his/ her office.

10. Performance of duties .
A State officer shall, to the best of his/ her ability —
(1) carry out the duties of the office efficiently and honestly;

(2) carry out the duties of the office in a transparent and
accountable manner;

(3) keep accurate records and documents relating to the fum:nons
of the office; and

(4) report truthfully on all matters of the Office:

11. Professionalism
A State officer shall —

(1) carry out the duties of his/her office in a manner that
maintains public confidence in the integrity of the office;

(2) treat members of the public, staff and other State and Public
officers with courtesy and respect;

(3)to the extent appropriate to the office, maintain high
standards of performance and level of professionalism within the
Office; and

(4) if the State officer is a member of a professional body,
observe and subscribe to the ethical professional
requirements of that body in so far as the requirements do not
contravene the Constitution, any other law or this Code.

. 12. Financial Probity

(1) A State officer shall not use his or her office to unlawfully
or wrongfully enrich himself or herself or any other person;

(2) Subject to "Article 76 (2) (b) of the Constitution, a State
officer shall not accept a personal loan or benefit which may
compromise the State officer in carrying out his or her duties;

(3) A State Officer shall submit an initial declaration of
income, assets and liabilities within thirty days of assuming office
to the Accounting Officer of the Office and thercafier bicnnially
and a final declaration within thirty days of ceasing to be State
Officer.

(4) A State Officer shall pay any taxes due from him or her
within the prescribed period,; ;

(5) A State Officer shall not neglect their financial or legal
obligations.
13. Moral and ethical requirements

(1) A State Officer shall observe and maintain the following
ethical and moral requirements —

(a) demonstrate honesty in the conduct of his or her public and
private affairs;

(b) not to engage in activities that amount to abuse of office;
(c) accurately and honestly represent information to the public;

(d) not engage in wrongful conduct in furtherance of personal
benefit;

(e) not misuse public resources;
(f) not falsify any records;

(g) not sexually harass or have inappropriate sexual relations
with other State officers, staff of the Office or any other
person;

(h) not engage in actions which would lead to the State

officer’s removal from the membership of a professional

body in accordance with the law; and

(i) not neglect family or parental obligations as provided for
under any law;

(j) not commit offences and in particular, any of the offences
under Parts XV and XVI of the Penal Code, Sexual
Offences Act, 2006, the Counter-Trafficking in Persons Act,
2010, and the Children’s Act, 2008.

14. Gifits or benefits in Kind

(1) A gift or donation given to a State officer on a public or
official occasion shall be treated as a gift or donation to the Office;

(2) Notwithstanding subsection (1), a State officer may receive
a gift given to the State officer in- an official capacity. provtdad
that —

(a) the gift is within the ordinary bounds of propriety, a usual
expression of courtesy or protocol and within the ordinary
standards of hospitality; :

(b) the gift does not exceed an amount prescribed by the
Regulations under the Leadership and Integrity Act or any
other law and

(c) the gift is not monetary.
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(3) Notwithstanding subsection (2) A State officer shall not—

(a) accept or solicit gifts, hospitality or other benefits from a
person who:

(i) has a cogltractua.l relationship with the Office;

(ii) has any interest that is directly or indirectly connected
with the State officer’s duties;

(b) receive a gift which has the potential of compromising
his or her integrity, objectivity or impartiality; or
(c) accept any type of gifi expressly prohibited under the Act.

(4) Subject to Section 13 (2), a State Officer who receives a
gift or donation shall declare the gift or donation to the Office
withi#l fourteen (14) days of receipt of the gift.

($) The Office shall maintain a register of all gifts received by
State officers as provided for in the regulations.

15. Wrongful or unlawful acquisition of property

A Sute officer shall not use the office to wrongfully or
unlawfully acquire or_inﬂuenoc the acquisition of property.

16. Conflict of interest

(HA State officer shall use the best efforts to avoid being in a
situstion where his or her personal interests conflict or appear to
conflict with the State officer’s official duties.

(2) Without limiting the generality of subsection (1), a State
offieer shall not hold shares or have any other interest in a

corporation, partaership or other body, directly or through another

person, if holding those shares or having .that interest would
resalt in a conflict of the State officer’s personal interests and the
officer’s official duties.

(3) A State officer whose personal interest conflict with his/her
official duties shall declare the personal interests to the Office and
thei Commission.

{4) The Commission may give directions on the appropriate
action to be taken by the State officer to avoid the conflict of
interest and the State officer shall comply with the directions; and

“refrain from participating in any deliberations with respect to the

matter. Any direction issued by the Commission under this
subsection shall be in writing.

(5) Notwithstanding any directions to the contrary under
subsection (4), a State officer shall not award or influence the
award of a contract lo;

(a) himself or herself;
(b) the State officer’s spouse or child;
(c) a business associate or agent; or

{dy a corporation, private company, partnership or other body
in which the officer has a substantial or controlling
interest.

(6) Where the State officer is present at a meeting, and an issue
which is likely to result in a conflict of interest is to be discussed,
the State officer shall declare the interest at the beginning of
the mecting or before the issue is deliberated upon.

(7) A declaration of a conflict of interest under subsection (6)
#bove shall be recorded in the minutes of that meeting.

(8) The Office shall maintain a register of conflicts of interest in
the prescribed form in which an affected State officer shall register
the particulars of the registrable interests, stating the nature and
extent of the conflict.

(9) For purposes of subsection (8), the registrable interests shall
include:-
(a) The interests set out in the Second Schedule of the Act;
(b) Any application for employment or other form of
engagement with the Office, by a family member or friend

of the State Officer or by a corporation associated with the
State Officer;

(c) Any other matter which, in the opini;n of the State Officer,
taking into account the circumstances thereof, is necessary for
registration as a conflict of interest.

(10) The Office shall keep the register of conflicts of interest
for five years after the last entry in each volume of the register;

(11) The Office shall prepare a report of the regisleréd
interests within thirty days after the close of a financial year;

(12) A State Officer shail ensure that an entry of registrable
interests under subsection (7) is updated and to notify the Office of
any changes in the registrable interests, within one month of each
change occurring.

17. Participation in tenders invited by the Office

(1) A State officer shall not participate in a tender for the’
supply goods or services to the Office.

(2) Notwithstanding subsection (1), a company or entity
associated with the State Officer shall not be construed as trading
with the Office unless:

(a) The State officer has a controlling shareholding in the
company or entity; or

(b) The State Officer is a Director of the Company.
18. Public Collections

(1) A State officer shall not solicit for contributions from the
Office or any other person or entity for a public purpose unless the
President has, by notice in the Gazette, declared a national disaster
and allowed a public collection for the purpose of the national
disaster in accordance with the law.

(2) A State officer shall not_participate in a public collection of
funds in a way that reflects adversely on that State officer's
integrity, impartiality or interferes with the performance of the
official duties. ’

(3) Nothing in this clause shall be constructed as prohibiting
a state officer from making voluntary contribution.

19. Bank accounts outside Kenya

(1) Subject to Article 76 (2) of the Constitution or any other
written law, a State officer shall not open or continue to operate
a bank account outside Kenya without the approval of the
Commission.

(2) A State officer who has reasonable grounds for opening

or operating a bank account outside Kenya shall apply to the

Commission for approval to open or operate a bank account.

(3) A State officer who operates or controls the operation of a bank
account outside Kenya shall submit statements of the account annually
to the Commission and authorize the Commission to verify the
statements and any other relevant information from the foreign
financial institution in which the account is held.

(4) Subject to subsections (1) and (2), a person who is
appointed as a State officer in the Office and has a bank account
outside Kenya shall, upon such appointment, close the bank account
within six months.

(5) Subject to subsection (4), a State officer may open or
continue to operate a2 bank account outside Kenya as may be
authorized by the Commission in writing.

20. Acting for foreigners

(1) A State officer shall not be an agent of, or further the interests
of a foreign government, organization or individual in a manner that
may be detrimental to the security interests of Kenya, except when
acting in the course of official duty.

(2) For the purposes of this section—

(a) an individual is a foreigner if the individual is not a citizen
of Kenya; and

(b) an organization is foreign if it is established outside Kenya or

is owned or controlled by a fomgn government, orgamuuon
or individual.
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21. Care of property

(1) A State officer shall take all reasonable steps to ensure
that public property in the officer’s custody, possession or control
is taken care of and is in good repair and condition

(2) A State officer shall not use public property, funds or -

services that are acquired in the course of or as a result of the
official duties, for activities that are not related to the official
work of the State officer.

(3) A State officer shall return to the Office all the public
property in their custody, possession or control at the end of the
appointment term.

(4) A State officer who contravenes subsection (2) or (3)
shall, in addition to any other penalties provided for under the
Constitution, the Act or any other law, be personally liable for any
loss or damage to the public property.

22. Misuse of official information

(1) A State officer shall not directly or indirectly use or allow any
person under the officer’s authority to use any information
obtained through or in connection with the office, which is not
available in the public domain, for the furthering of any private
interest, whether financial or otherwise.

(2) A state Officer shall not be deemed to have violated the
requirements of subsection (1), if the information is given:

(a) Pursuant to a court order.

{b) For purposes of educational, research, literary, scientific or
other purposes not prohibited by law.

(c) In compliance with Article 35 of the Constitution and the
relevant law.

23. Political neutrality
(DA S.talae officer, shall not, in the performance of his /her duties

(a) act as an agent for, or further the interests of a political party
or candidate in an election; or

(b) manifest support for or opposition to any political party or
candidate in an election.

(2) Engage in any political activity that may compromise or
be seen to compromise the political neutrality of the office subject
to any laws relating to elections.

24. Impartiality

A State officer shall, at all times, carry out the duties of
the Office with impartiality and objectivity in accordance with
Articles 10, 27, 73(2)}(b) and 232 of the Constitution and shall
not practice favouritism, nepotism, tribalism, cronyism, religious
bias or engage in corrupt or unethical practices.

25. Giving of advice

A State officer who has a duty to give advice shall give honest,
accurate and impartial advice without fear or favour.

26. Gainful employment

(1) Subject to subsection (2}, a full time State officer shall
not participate in any other gainful employment.

(2) In this section, “gainful employment” means work that a
person can pursue and perform for money or other form of
compensation or remuneration which is inherently incompatible with
the responsibilities of the State office or which results in the
impairment of the judgement of the State officer in the
execution of the functions of the State office or results in a
conflict of interest.

27. Offers of future employment

y

(1) A State officer shall not allow himself or herself to be
influenced in the performance of their duties by plans or
.expectations for or offers of future employment or benefits.

(2) A State officer shall disclose, in writing, to the Commussion,
all offers of future employment or benefits that could place the State
officer in a situation of conflict of interest.

28. Former State Officer in the Office

A former State officer shall not be engaged by the Office in a
matter in which the State Officer was originally engaged in as a

_ State officer, for-at least two years after leaving the Office.

29. Misleading the public

A State Officer shall not knowmgly give false or misleading
information to any person.

30. Falsification of records

A State officer shall not falsify any records or misrepresent
information to the public.

31. Conduct of private affairs

A State officer shall conduct their private affairs in a
manner that maintains public confidence in the integrity of the
Office.

32. Bullying/Harassment

(1) A State officer shall not bully another State Officer, a
member of staff or any other person;

For purposes of subsection (1), “bullying” includes repeated
offensive  behavior which is vindictive, cruel, malicious .or
humiliating whether or not is intended to undermine a person and,
“harassment” includes unwanted and unwelcome words, deeds,
actions, gestures, or behaviors that make the State officer, member of
staff or other person feel uncomfortable. All employees and members
of public shall be treated with respectand dignity.

33. Acting through others
(1) A State officer shall not —

(a) cause anything to be done through another person that would
constitute a contravention of this Code, the Constitution or
any other law if done by the State officer; or

(b) allow or direct a person under their supervision or
control to do anything that is in contravention of this
Code , the Constitution or any other law.

(2) Subsection (1) (b) shall not apply where anything is done
without the State officer’s knowledge or consent or if the State
officer has taken reasonable steps to prevent it.

(3) A State officer who acts under an unlawful direction shall be
responsible for his or her actions.

34. Reporting improper orders

(1) If a State officer considers that anything required of them
is in contravention of the Code or is otherwise improper or
unethical, the State officer shall report the matter to Parliament.

(2) Parliament  shall  investipate the report and take
appropriate action within ninety days of receiving the report. .

35. Confidentiality

Subject to Article 35 of the Constitution and any other
relevant law, a State Officer shall not disclose or cause to be
disclosed any information in his custody to any unauthorized person.

36. Duty to prevent occurrence of corruption or unethical practice in
the Office

A State Officer who believes or has reason to bejiev; that a
corrupt act or unethical malpractice has occurred or is about to
occur in the Office shall take all necessary measures to prevent it

. from continuing or materializing in addition to any other appropriate

action.
37. Promotion of ethics; integrity and best practices in the Office

State officers in the Office shall collectively and individually

take measures to ensure that staff of the Office uphold and practice

e highest attainable degree of integrity in the performance of their
duties.

38. Dress Code

A State Officer shall maintain appropriate standard of dressing
and personal hygiene at all times.:

-
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39, Breach of Code

(1) Any person may lodge a complaint alleging a breach of
this Code by a State Officer to Parliament.

(2) Breach of this Code amounts to misconduct for which the
State Officer may be subjected to disciplinary proceedings
including removal from office.

(3) Where a breach of this Code amounts to a violation of the
Constitution, the State Officer may  be removed from office in
accordance with Article 251 of the Constitution;

40. Implementation of the Code

The Controller of Budget shall take personal responsibility for
compliance with the provisions of this Code
41.Review '

The Office may, from time to time and with the approval of the
Commission, amend this Code.

COMMITMENT TO THE CODE

I AGNES ODHIAMBO holder of National ID/Passport No.
4827782 and Post Office Box 70145-00400, Nairobi, Kenya having
been duly appointed as the Controller of Budget, do hereby
confirm that 1 have read and understood the Leadership and Integrity
Code for the Office of the Controller of Budget and hereby commit to
abide by the provisions of the Code at all times.

Sworn at NAIROBI }
By the said Agnes Odhiambo }

This.......... day OF . s 2015 De-po-nent
Before Me }

: }
Commissioner for Qaths/Magistrate }
'Dated the 1st December, 2015.

AGNES ODHIAMBO,
Controller of Budget.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9197

THE PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING
ACT, 2009

(No. 9 of 2009)
NOTICE OF PRESERVATION ORDERS

IN EXERCISE of the powers conferred by section 83(1) of the
Proceeds of Crime and Anti-Money Laundering Act, 2009, the Agency
Director gives notice to—

Josephine Kabura [rungu

Ben Gethi

Charity Wangui Gethi

Jedidah Wangari Wangui

John Kago Ndungu

Sam M. Mwadime

Patrick Onyango Ogola t/a Ogola and Mujera Advocate
Martin Muthomi Gitonga

that the High Court has issued preservation orders in Miscellaneous
Application No. 524 of 2015 ‘as specified in the Schedule hereto.

SCHEDULE
IN THE HIGH COURT OF KENYA AT NAIROBT
MISCELLANEOUS APPLICATION NO. 524 OF 2015
_MILIMANI LAW COURTS - CIVIL DWISldN

In the matter of: An application by the Assets Recovery Agency for
' Orders under sections 69, 81, 82 And 87 of the
Proceeds of Crime and Anti-Money Laundering Act

read with Order 51 of the Civil Procedure Rules to

prohibit the transfer and or disposal off or other

dealings (howsoever described) with the property

known as L.R. No. 14902/38 Muthaiga North,
Nairobi, L.R. No. 8361/12, Thika, House on L.R.
No. 21/1/97 in Rosslyn Estate, Nairobi, Eden Times
Restaurant Limited situated on L. R. No. 209/412/1
Mercury Building along Moi Avenue, No. 14902/38
Muthaiga North and motor vehicle registration
Number KCB 750Z, Range Rover Vogue

and

In the matter of: L.R. No. 14902/38 Muthaiga North, Nairobi L.R.
No. 8361/12, Thika; House on L.R. No. 21/1/97 in
Rosslyn Estate, Nairobi; the Eden Times Restaurant
Limited Situated on L. R. No. 209/412/1 Mercury
Building along Moi Avenue; L.R. No. 14902/38
Muthaiga North; and Motor Vehicle Registration
Number KCB 7502, Rangerover Vogue

between
The Assets Recovery Agency ... Applicant
Versus
Josephine Kabura Irungu. : 1st Respondent
Ben Gethi ; ‘v.r.. 2nd Respondent
Charity Wangui Gethi ... 3rd Respondent
Jedidah Wangari Wangui..........ccoeeeiveecncnnccnicrneenene.. 4th Respondent
John Kago Ndung'u 5th Respondent
Sam. M. Mwadime ; 6th Respondent
Patrick Onyango Ogola t/a
Ogola and Mujera Advocate ...........cocevccnnciniesiinnnns Tth Respondent
Martin Muthomi. Gitonga ... 8th Respondent

UPON READING the Originating Motion presented to this court
on 25th November, 2015 by Applicant under sections 69, 81, 82, 86
and 87 of the Proceeds of Crime and Anti Money Laundering Act read
with Order 51 of the Civil Procedure Rules and upon reading the
affidavits of Muthoni Kimani sworn on 25th November, 2015 and
affidavit of No. 75821 CPL Sautet Jeremia Matipei sworn on 25th
November, 2015 and the annextures thereto and upon hearing counsels
for the Applicants ex-parte:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED:
1. THAT the Application is certified as urgent.

2. THAT an order be and is hereby issued prohibiting the transfer,
mortgage, attachment, disposal off or any other dealings with
the following properties for a period of six (6) months from the
date of the preservation order :
L.R. No. 14902/38 Muthaiga North Nairobi
L.R.NO. 8361/12 Thika *

House No. 21/1/97 in Rosslyn Estate, Nairobi
L.R. No. 14902/38 Muthaiga North.

3. THAT motor vehicle registration No. KCB 750Z be seized and
surrendered to the investigating officer No. 75821 to Cpl Sautet
Jeremiah Matipei and be detained until further orders are made
by this court.

4. THAT the Chief Land Registrar do place a restriction on the
land register prohibiting the Respondents, their agents, or
servants from mortgaging, attaching, in execution or in any
manner dealing with parcel No. LR. No. 14902/38 Muthaiga
North, Nairobi, L.R. No. 8361/12 Thika, L.R. No. 21/1/97 in
Rosslyn estate Nairobi and L.R. No. 14902/38 Muthaiga North

property.

5.. THAT the Order and Application shall be served upon the
respondents. >

6. THAT there’ after the Applicants shall comply with the
provisions of the Act relating to advertising of the order and
attendant timelines with respect to prayer 3 of the motion.

7. THAT an inventory of the business known as Eden Times
Restaurant shall be taken and the said property shall not be
transferred in the pendency of these proceedings.
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GIVEN under my hand and seal of this honourable court on this

25th day of November, 2015.

Water Deposit

DEPUTY REGISTRAR Connection Type Approved (KSh.)
HIGH COURT OF KENYA “Water Kiosks where anticipated
e 0k Dreesmiber: 3015 monthly consumption is:
Dated the cmoer, . Less than 50m 1,000
MUTHONI KIMANI, Between 50m’ and 100m’ 2,000
Agency Direclor. Between 100m’ and 150m’ 2,500
More than 150m* 3.000
GAZETTE NOTICE NOD. 9198 Retail shops, workshops and
offices consuming more than 10m’ 3,000
THE WATER ACT Bar, restaurant and lodgings more 5,000
than 15m
Wo: 8 of 2003) Hotel class “A” and "B Iess than 10,000 "
KIRINYAGA WATER AND SANITATION COMPANY LTD 150m
(KIRIWASCO) Hotel class “C” and *’D’* more 15,000
' than 150m’ :
APPROVED TARIFF STRUCTURE FOR THE PERIOD 2015/16 TO 2017/18 Hospitals more than 150m’ 30,000
The Water Services Regulatory Board under power granted by Mimor W“s‘f;“’fh" 3“;0(0":““}1’0“” 10,000
sections 47 and 73 (5" of the Water Act, 2002 has approved the regular -m““m‘) 1. than —
tariff adjustment for the area served by the Kirinyaga Water and gcmﬂc:ém’%’&‘n?m 50,000
itati KIRIWASCO). | _conmne
ritacion Company L (RIRDRASCO) Light industries less than 200m’ 10,000
Under the powers granted under section 73 (1) and 73 (4) of the Medium industries between 15,000
Water Act 2002, Tana Water Services Board , do give a one month 200m’*and 300m’
notice from the date of this communication to all existing and potential Heavy industries more than 300m’ 20,000
customers of Kirinyaga Waler and Sanitation company Lid. that the Health centres/dispensaries less 5,000
structure of approved tariff for water services for the financial year than 150m®
2015/16 to 2017/18 is as follows: Schoo]sfco]lcgcg;‘mher institutions 10,000
: ; more than 200m
;é]lg;)tﬁ; Tariff Structure for the period 2015/2016, 2016/2017 and Schools less than 200m? = 5000
Topping up of consumer deposit The actual cost subject to a
] after disconnection based on minimum of 2,500
; p d Justified :
Type of Customer| Consumption Block in m3 Approve actual average consumption for
— Tariff (KSh Jm’) domestic consumersy
P g 'I'R H il
0-6 300(Flat rate) %4 Other  Bacges
T = Service Approved (KSh.)
51-100 80 For special reading of a meter 200
101-300 00 For cutting off supply at the 200
300 and above 30 '_request ?f customer i
Commerciall/lndustrial/Government Institutions For tuming on supply otherwise
0-6 710 (Flat rate) than in respect of a first 200
7-20 50 connection
21-50 33 F?r turning on supply after 500
51-100 %0 disconnection for non-payment
101-300 100 Wnteraﬁowser (own transport) 180
[Public schools, Colleges ﬁ?}ﬁ;’lﬁl’}? —0 WL'T’ Rireon by WP 2,500
= 0{600 & 5 For testing a meter at the request
5011200 & of the consumer where it is not The actual cost subjectto g
- found to register incorrectly to minimum of 500
1200 and above 90 de g ceeding 5%
any degree exceeding
ulk sale at Water Exhauster Service (Company 5,000 for other customers and
osks. Flat rate 35 Exhauster) 4,000 for informal settlements
2.0 Miscellancous Charges Private Exhausters
(Dumping into the company’s 15,000 per truck per month
2.1 Meter Rent per Month sewer system)
Meter rent —
7 Penalties roved (KSh.
(e nches) Approved (KSh. Self reconnection afier cut off for| 5,000 and billing to be bacm'
% 50 non payment from date of cut off
330 Surcharge for illegal connection-| 10,000 and regularise connemonl
73 750 Domestic
550 Surcharge for illegal connection-| 40,000 and regularise connection
; m 250 Commercial/ school/college/
3 430 hospital
Surcharge for illegal.connection-| 100,000 and regularise
4 800 Construction site connection
24 1,500 Surcharge for illegal connection-| 500,000 and regularise
2.2 Deposits | Industry connection .
Tllegal connection Sewerage Charges equal to those of illegal
Water Deposit connection of water per categary |
- = Surcharge for tampering with 5,000
Connection Type Approved (KSh.) meters (this to include meter )
Domestic customer (single removal, reversing of meter, etc)
dwelling) 1,500 Surcharge for direct suction of 10,000
Dormestic customer (single water from the supply line using | -
connection serving more than one a
single dwelling including Surcharge for meter loss.or Cost of meter
flats)consuming more than 200m’ 10,000 | damage .
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3.0 Analysis of cost structure

Below is the summary of the cost structure that makes up the total cost
incurred by KIRIWASCO

month notice from the date of this communication to all existing and
potential customers of Embu Water and Sanitation company Ltd.
that the structure of approved tariff for water services for the
financial year 2015/16 to 2017/18 is as follows:

1.0 Water Tariff Structure for the period 2015/2016 and 2016/2017

Expenditure Item | 2015/2016 2016/2017 201712018
(KSh.) (KSh.) (KSh.)

Operations 90816,726 | 95,096,141 | 99,704,498
Maintepance 8,585,502 9,014,777 9465515

| Regulatory levy | 1,348,335 1,348,335 1.498,469
WSB 9,439,664 9,675,576 7075760
Adminjstrative
Fees
Debt Rgpayment | 2,546 488 " 456,036 -
Minor jnvestments 10,100,000 6,510,571 15,000,000
Total Costs 122,836,715 122,101 435 132,744 242
Projected Rev. 125,395,185 126,743 520 142,354,529
(KSh.)
Total Costs 102% 104% 107%
Covcrgc(%)

4.0 Conditions attached to the tariff approval

(i) All the parties concerned should take note that the newly
proposed tariff was approved on condition that all the
assumptions made in the tariff projections shall be monitored
and KIRIWASCO shall be expected to meet the targets below:

Yargets 2015/2016 | 2016/2017 201712018

Water coverage (%) | 35% 40% 45%

Water Quality 100 % compliance with the quality standards
|_standseds (%)

Non Revenue Water | 62 60 58

(%)

Hours of supply (hrs)| 23 23 23

Staff per 1000 9 8 7

Connections

Metering Ratio (%) | 95 97 100

Coliection 93 94 95

Efficiency(%)

Resale at Kiosk Regulate resale by kiosk vendors at KSh. |

per 20 litres. Tariff at kiosk must be
displayed at strategic points for public
awarcness

(ii) Performance Evaluation: Performance Targets to be met and
ascertained by WASREB at the end of the 1st year of the
tariff period. Non achievement of the set targets without
justifiable cause shall lead to penalty.

(iii) Loan Repayment: KIRIWASCO to meet the loan obligations
as per the loan agreement.

(iv) Regulatory levy: KIRIWASCO shall remit the regulatory
levy on monthly basis being 1% of the billing as per Legal
Notice No. 36 of 2008,

MOSES M. NAIVASHA,
Chief Executive Officer,
Tana Water Services Board (TWSB).

ved by:
ROBERT GAKUBIA,
Chief Executive Officer

MR/8473059 Water Services Regulatory Board (WASREB).

Current Tariff Approved Justified
Type of Customer (KSh./n) Tariff (KSh./m’)
Residential
Consumption Block (m’)
Fixed Charge KSh.
0-6 200 KShs. 210 (Flat rate)
7-20 50 52
21-50 ) 60 60
51-100 70 70
101-300 85 85
300 and above 130 130
Commercial/Industrial
/Government
Institutions
Consumption block (m’)
Fixed Charge
0-6 ) KSh.200 KSh. 210 (Flat rate)
7-20 50 52
21-50 60 60
51-100 70 70
101-300 ] 85 85
300 and above 130 130
Public schools, Colleges and Universities
Consumption block (m’
0-600 50 50
601 -1200 60 60
1200 and above 90 90
Bulk supply to Water
Kiogks Flat rate 35

.1 Sewerage Tariff

(a) Sewerage is charged at 75% of the water billed for all customers
with sewer connections

(b) Disconnected water accounts shall be charged based on the
average of the last three months’ sewer charges before the
disconnection.

(c) Customers with no water connection:

(iy Individual Domestic Customers,. flat rate of KSh. 300 per
month.

(ii) All other customers: ?‘595: of volume of water used as per the
metered source of water.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9199
THE WATER ACT
(No. 8 of 2002)
EMBU WATER AND SANITATION COMPANY (EWASEO)
APPROVED TARIFF STRUCTURE FOR THE PERIOD 2015/16 T0.2017/18

The Water Services Regulatory Board under power granted by
sections 47 and 73 (5) of the Water Act, 2002 has approved the regular
tariff adjustment for the area served by the Embu Water and Sanitation
Company Itd (EWASCO). =

Unlder the powers granted under section 73 (1) and 73 (4) of the
Water Act, 2002, Tana Water Services Board, do hereby give a one

2.0 Miscellancous Charges

2.1 Meter Rent per Month
Meter rent
Size (Inches) Approved (KSh.)
Ve . 50
Ya 50
1 : 250
1% 250
2 250
2% ; 450
3 450
4 800
>4 1,500

2.2 Deposits

Water Deposit
Connection Type _ * Approved (KSh.)
Domestic customer (single
dwelling) 1,500
Domestic customer (single )
connection serving more than one
single dwelling including flats) -
consuming more than 200m’ 10,000
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Warer Deposit Penalties Approved (KSh.)
Connection Type Approved (KSh.) ; :
Water Kiosks where anticipated Surcha:gevfor mwnng with 5,000
monthly consumption is: meters (this to include meter :
Less than S0m® 1,000 removal, reversing of me:ter, etc)
Between 50m® and 100m° 2.000 Surcharge for direct suc‘tjon qf 10,000

water from the supply line using a

Between 100m’ and 150m* 2,500 gt PPy 2
More than 150m* 3,000
Retail shops, wadihops nd Surchasge for meter loss or damage | Cost of meter
offices consuming more than 10m’ 3.000 3.0 Analysis of cost structure
Bar, restaurant and lodgings more | 5,000 . ;
than 15m? i Pelow is the summary of the cost structure that makes up the total cost
Hotcigclass “A" and “B" less than 10.0(1! incurred by EWASCO
e TG Expenditure Item 201572016 (KSh.) | 2016/2017(KSh.)
than 150m* Operations 154,653,576 180,636,439
Hospitals more than 150m’ 20,000 Maintenance 24,668,784 25,902,223
Minor construction site (temporary 10,000 icgulatbry levy 2,718478 3,475,746
connection) less than 200m’* WSB Administrative 26,464,518 32,533,775
Large construction site (temporary 50,000 Fees
connection) more than 200m* Minor investments 13,534,568 13,561,296
Light industries less than 200m* 10,000 Loan Repayment 24,249,180 | 24,249,180
Medium industries between 15,000 Total Costs 246289104 280,358,660
200m*and 300m* Projected Rev. (KSh.) 255,536,940 330,195,838
Heavy industries more than 300m’ 20,000 Total Costs 103.8% 117.8%
Health centres/dispensaries less 5,000 Coverage(%) i
than 150m’ - .
Schools/colleges/other institutions 10,000 4.0 Conditions attached to the tariff approval
more than 200m’ (i) All the parties concerned should take note that the newly
Schools less than 200m® 5000 proposed tariff was approved on condition that all the
Topping up of consumer deposit The actual cost subject to a assumptions made in the tariff projections shall be monitored
after disconnection baséd on actual minimum of 2,500 and EWASCO shall be expected to meet the targets below:

average consumption for domestic

illegal connection of water per|
category

consumers Targets 2015/2016 2016/2017
2.3 Other Charges Water coverage (%) | 80% 85% -
Service Approved (KSh.) Water Quality 100 % compliance with the quality
For special reading of a meter - 200 stmndards (%) Mendardy k
For cutting off supply at the 200 Non Revenue Water | 39 38
request of customer (%)
For turning on supply
otherwise than in respect of a 200 Hours of supply (hrs) | 24 24
first connection
For turning on supply after ‘S:t:fnsce;;f % %
disconnection for non- 500
payment Metering Ratio (%} 100 100
Water Bowser (own 180 _
transport) per m’ : Collection 94 95
Water Bowser by WSP 2500 Efficiency(%)
b ooy : Resale atKiosk Regulate resale by Kiosk vendors at KSh. 1
Tequeet of the: comsiamor The actual cost subject to a - : per 20 litres. Tariff at kiosk must be
where it is not found to 50 3 bt ;
S minimum of 500 displayed at strategic points for public
register incorrectly to any st e e
| _degree exceeding 5%
E:m:tt::}&wioe (Company i% :g: mf;;mm (ii) Performance Evaluation: Performance Targets to be met and
: ascertained by WASREB at the end of the 1st year of the
anatc‘ExI}austers tariff period. Non achievement of the set targets without
(Dumping into the company’s| 15,000 per truck per month justifiable cause shall lead to penalty.
sewer system)
(iii) Loan Repayment: EWASCO to meet the loan obligations as
per the loan agreement.
Shiesnsind Approved (K) iv) Regulatory levy: EWASCO shall remit the regulatory levy on
Self reconnection after cut off for 5000 and billing to be w mf:sﬂhl;rmgasis );eing 1% of the billing as per Legal sztice
non payment backdated from date of cut off No. 36 of 2008. ) :
Surcharge for illegal connection- 10,000 and regularise
Domestic . connection MOSES M. NAIVASHA,
Surcharge for illegal connection- 40,000 and regularise Chief Executive Officer,
Commercial/ school/college/ - connection Tana Water Services Board (TWSB).
hospital .
Surcharge for illegal connection- 100,000 and regularise Approved by:
. Construction site connection :
Surcharge for illegal connection- 500,000 and regularise ROBERT GAKUBIA,
Industry connection ; ’ Chief Executive Officer,
Tllegal connection Sewerage Charges equal to those of MR/8473060 Water Services Regulatory Board (WASREB).

e
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GAZETTE NOTICE No. 9200
THE BANKRUPTCY ACT
(Cap. 53)
RECEIVING ORDER AND CREDITORS' MEETING
{Under Rule 145 of the Bankruptcy Rules)

Debtor's name.—Rohin Depak Shah.

Address.—P.O. Box 4536, Kisii.

Descriprion.— Businessman.

Date of filing petition.— 5th November, 2015.
Court.—High Court of Kenya at Kisumu.

Date af order —6th November, 2015.

Cause No.— 12 of 2015.

Whether debtor’s or creditor’s petition.—Debtor’s petition.
Act or acts of bankruptcy.—Inability to pay debts.

Date of first creditor’s meeting.— 17th December, 2015.
Venue.—Haki House, 1st Floor, Room 10.

Time.—10.00. a.m.

Last day of filing proof of debt forms.— 16th December, 2015,

Dated the 1st December, 2015.
MARK GAKURU,

MR/8473182 Deputy Official Receiver.

GAZﬁW NOTICE No. 9201
THE SACCO SOCIETIES REGULATORY AUTHORITY (SASRA)
' THE SACCO SOCIETIES ACT '
(Cap.490B)
EXTENSION OF STATUTORY MANAGEMENT
(Issued pursuant to section 51 and 52 of the Sacco Societies Act)

NOTICE is hereby given that, the Hiéh Court of Kenya has issued
orders extending the Statutory Management period of M/S Jijenge
Sacgo Society Ltd (Hereinafter the Sacco Society) for six (6) months

- with effect from Ist November, 2015 in Misc. Civil Application No.

156.of 2015 (Nairobi).

Consequently, the Sacco Societies Regulatory Authority
(bemeinafter the Authority), in exercise of the powers conferred upon it
by 8ection 51 and 52 of the Sacco Societies Act (Cap. 490B) as read
with Regulation 73 and 74 of the Sacco Societies (Deposit-taking
Sacco Business) Regulations, 2010 and all other enabling provisions of
the law, has:

1. Declared, an extension of the moratorium on the sale or
attachment or lien on all the properties and/or the assets of the said
Sacco Society during the statutory management period, except as may
be otherwise varied in writing by Statutory Manager. .

2. Restricted, all * and/or any further withdrawal of deposits or
payments in respect deposits, which may be due to the members of the
said Sacco Society, and/or any other person, except, as may be
otherwise specifically or generally directed or authorised by the
Statutory Manager from time to time;

3. Extended, the appointment of Mr. Peter Njuguna, CPA as the
Statutory Manager of the said Sacco Society with effect from st
November, 2015 for a period of six (6) months unless otherwise
extended by the High Court of Kenya, and who shall exclusively
manage the affairs, and exercise all the powers of the said Sacco
Saciety, including but not limited to the use of the corporate seal of the
Sacco Society, and whose address for all intents and purposes shall be;

THE STATUTORY MANAGER. THE STATUTORY MANAGER,
Jijenge Sacco Society Ltd., Jijenge Sacco Society Lid.,
(Under Statutory Management), {Under Statutory Management)
CJO Sacco Societies Regulatory  or Thika Coffee Mills Building,

Aumthority, P.O. Box 6222 - 00100,
Britam Centre, Ist Floor, Mara Thika,
Reoad ? Tel. +254 020 2935 000/101,

P. 0. Box 25089 — 00200,
Nairobi

Tel. +254 020 2935 000/101
Evmail: jijenge@sasra.go ke,

E-mail: jijenge@sasra.go ke,

4. Extended, the suspension powers of the general meeting of the
members, the Board of Directors and the management of the said
Sacco Society, and/or any other Committee of the said Sacco Society
until further notice in accordance with the Authority’s orders dated
2nd October, 2014, Kenya Gazette Notice No. 7187 of 2014, and
powers which shall be exclusively exercised by the Statutory Manager
accordingly.

Dated the 2nd December, 2015.
JOHN MWAKA,

MR/8473325 Ag. Chief Executive Officer.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9202

THE COMPANIES ACT

IN THE MATTER OF ARDAN (CIVIL ENGINEERING) LTD (IN
LIQUIDATION)

FIRST CREDITORS MEETING

NOTICE is given, pursuant to section 286 and 287 of Cap. 486,
Laws of Kenya, that a meeting of creditors in the above matter will be
held at Pride Inn Conference Centre, Westlands Road, Westlands,
Nairobi, on the 15th of December, 2015 at 1.30 p.m. for the purpose of
having a full statement of the position of the company’s affairs,
together with a list of the creditors of the company and the estimated
amount of their claims, laid before them, and for the purpose, if
thought fit, of nominating a liquidator and appointing a liquidation

* committee.

Proxies to be used at the meeting must be lodged with the
liquidator at 3rd Floor, Kalamu House, Grevillea Grove, Westlands by
12 noon on the 14th December, 2015.

A list of creditors of the company will be available for inspection
on 10th and 11th December, 2015 between the hours of 10 a.m. and
3.30 p.m. at the offices of the company, 3rd Floor, Kalamu House,
Grevillea Grove, Westlands, Nairobi.

Dated the 3rd December, 2015.
KERETO MARIMA,

MR/8473079 Joint Liquidator.

GAZETTE NOTICE No. 9203

THE COMPANIES ACT

IN THE MATTER OF ARDAN (CIVIL ENGINEERING) LTD (IN
LIQUIDATION)

FIRST CREDITORS MEETING

NOTICE is given, pursuant to section 286 and 287 of Cap. 486,
Laws of Kenya, that a meeting of creditors in the above matter will be
held at Pride Inn Conference Centre, Westlands Road, Westlands,
Nairobi, on the 15th of December, 2015 at 3.45 p.m. for the purpose of
having a full statement of the position of the company’s affairs,
together with a list of the creditors of the company and the estimated
amount of their claims, laid before them, and for the purpose, if
thought fit, of nominating a liquidator and appointing a’ liquidation
committee.

Proxies to be used at the meeting must be lodged. with the
liquidator at 3rd Floor, Kalamu House, Grevillea Grove, Westlands by
12 noon on the 14th December, 2015.

A list of creditors of the company will be available for inspection
on 10th and 11th December, 2015 between the hours of 10 am. and
3.30 p.m. at the offices of the company, 3rd Floor, Kalamu House,
Grevillea Grove, Westlands, Nairobi.

Dated the 3rd December, 2015. /
KERETO MARIMA,

MR/8473079 Joint Ligquidator.

GAZETTE NOTICE N0. 9204

THE COMPANIES ACT

IN THE MATTER OF ARDAN (CIVIL ENGINEERING) LTD (IN
LIQUIDATION)

FIRST CREDITORS MEETING

NOTICE is given, pursuant to section 286 and 287 of Cap. 486,
Laws of Kenya, that a meeting of creditors in the above matter will be
held at Pride Inn Conference Centre, Westlands Road, Westlands,
Nairobi on the 15th of December, 2015 at 8,30 a.m. for the purpose of
having a full statement of the position of the company’s affairs,
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together with a list of the creditors of the company and the estimated
amount of their claims, laid before them, and for the purpose, if
thought fit, of nominating a liquidator and appointing a liquidation
committee.

Proxies to be used at the meeting must be lodged with the
liquidator at 3rd Floor, Kalamu House, Grevillea Grove, Westlands by
12 noon on the 14th December, 2015.

A list of creditors of the company will be available for inspection
on 10th and 11th December, 2015 between the hours of 10 a.m. and
3.30 p.m. at the offices of the company, 3rd Floor, Kalamu House,
Grevillea Grove, Westlands, Nairobi.

Dated the 3rd December, 2015.

KERETO MARIMA,

MR/8473079 Joint Liguidator.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9012
THE ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT AND
CO-ORDINATION ACT
(No. 8 of 1999)

THE NATIONAL ENVIRONMENT MANAGEMENT
AUTHORITY

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC TO SUBMIT COMMENTS ON AN-
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT STUDY REPORT FOR THE
PROPOSED SANITARY LANDFILL DEVELOPMENT, PROJECT AT THE
EX15TING KANG'OKI DUMPSITE, THIKA SUB COUNTY IN KIAMBU
: COUNTY

PURSUANT to Regulation 21 of the Environmental Management
and. Co-ordination (Impact Assessment and Audit) Regulations, 2003,
the National Environment Management Authority (NEMA) has
received an Environmental Impact Assessment Study Report for the

above proposed project.

The Propenent, County Government of Kiambu, is proposing a
Sanitary Landfill Development Project at the Existing Kang'oki
Dumpsite, Thika Sub County in Kiambu County.

The Project involves the construction of terraceed levels (2m cell
lifts) approximately to a maximum height of 10 m. At every. 10 m
interval, storm water cut-off trench will be construcied at the foot of
the next level. The trench will divert external uncontaminated water
around the waste work face and will form part of the next level
excavations for cover material. The base of every lift is sloped towards
the internal drainage system in the center of the work area. Runoff will
be diverted into the clean water trenches of the internal drainage
system. The runoff diverted around the landfill will discharged into the
natural environment downstream of the landfill.

The following are the anticipated impacts and proposed mitigation

measures:

Environmental/Social

Impact

Air Pollution . * Covering the site with sieves/ gunny bags
: to minimize pollution.

Praposed Mitigation Measures

» Control speed  and
construction vehicles.

* Prohibit idling of vehicles.

operation  of

* Spray water on excavated areas.

¢ Maintenance of construcuon plant and
equipment.

* Sensitize construction workers.

* All bare areas should be landscaped after
construction.

* Workers should be provided with dust
masks while working in the site.

» Conduct air quality analysis periodically.

Leachate * Onsitc leachate treatment facility .to be
installed for treating polluted water and

leachate.

Water contamiation

Soil ¢rosion and
compaction

Regular monitoring of the color of the
leachate Conduct water quality analysis on
the adjacent water sources.

A drainage system in the landfill cell
which will drain all new leachate from the
landfill cell.

To prevent the production of new leachate,

surfaoewateushwkdbescpamedas
much as possible from the poliution

source.

To reduce the infiltration in the landfili
mass, wastes should be covered by
i le layers (clay layer of 0.5m;
K <1.10-9 m/s).

Every effort should be made o casure
that any chemicals or hazasdows

substances do not contaminate the soil or

water on-site,

Site staff should not be permitted to uee
any stream, river, other open water body,
or natural water source adjacent io ar
within the designated site for the
purposes of bathing, washing of
clothing, or for any construction or
related activities. Municipal water (or

another source approved by the

environment management spocialist)
should instead be used for all activities
such .as washing of equipmest or
disposal of any type of waste, dust
suppression, concrete mixing,
compacting etc.

All concrete mixing must take place on
designated, impermeable surface.

No veliicles transporting cover mﬂuh.ls
to the site may be washed on-site.

No vehicles transporting, placing, or
compacting asphalt or any other
bituminous product may be washed om-
site. 2

All substances required for wvehicle
maintenance and repair must be stored n
scaled containers until they can be
disposed of removed from the site.

Hazardous substance/ materials are to be
transported in sealed containers or bags.

Provide soils conservation structurcs om
the arcas prone to soil erosion to reduce
impact of run off.

All bare areas should bé well landscaped
after completion.

The proponent at the decommissioning
phase will rchabilitate the land by
loosening the soil.

The contractor will always use a pre-
detmmmed route to the site.

Unnecessary heavy machines wﬁl be
avoided.

Use of cheap tools like jambs, forks,
mattocks and shovels will be encouraged
to do the ground breaking.

Operations will be timed to take place
during the dry season when the soils are
dry to reduce the risk of soil compaction.
Avoid unnecessary movement of seil
materials from the site.

Provide soil conservation structures on
the areas prone to soil erosion mostly to
reduce impact by the run-off.
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Wasic weics (Run-off)

Fire propagsdncss

Occupsfiomal beaith and

« Control construction activities especially
during rainy conditions.

* Re-surface  surface  areas  after
completion of the project and introduce
appropriate vegetation.

* Provide suitable storm water drainage
channels to effectively discharge water
to safe areas. Channels need to be
regularly maintained and repaired to
avoid point discharge in case of
breakages or blockages.

s Conduct landscaping after the project
completion to maximaily control any
possible chance of soil movement.

Coastruction of well-maintained drains to
effectively manage sinface run off.
Presence  of well-maintxined  sanitary
facilitics for the workers and visitors to the
site.

During construction, the design of the
draimage system should ensure that surface
flow is drained suitably into the existing
draipage channels or the sewer system.
Drainage channels should be isstalled in
all areas that generate or receive susface
waler such as car parking, drive ways and
along the building block-edpes of the
roofs.

Chaanels should be coverpd by approved
materials 0 prevent oecurrence of
acidents. and omtry of dint that weuld
compromise flow of run off.

Dwainage channels should ensure safe

disposal of rmenoff/surface water and
should, be self-cleaning.

Peving of the sidewalks, deiveways and
oiler opom areq should bo dohe using
pervious. maerials to encourage recharge
amd thus reduciag water runoff volume.
The proponcnt should ensure that regulas
checks for the sewer line are dose © avoid
bllockages or damages of pipes.

These showld be 3 member of staff who is
waimed in fire proparcdness and response
who is always within the development.
Debiacate a fise marshal for the resort to
coosdinase proccedings in case of a fire
CMETZCACY .

Fisefighting drills carried out regulady.
Fieefighting emergency response plan.
Ensupe firefighting equipment are in place

and regularly maintained, serviced and’

mspected.
Trwin workers on fire fighting skills.

Fire hazard signs and directions to
egmergency exit, route to follow and
assembly point in case of any fire

TFhe site shall be registered with the
BDirectorate of Occupational Health and
Safety.

All workers MUST be provided with full
protective’ goar. These include working
W. oxeralls, helmets, m
cacrnufifs, masks and gloves.

All visitors, Consultants and i
coming into- the construction site, MUST

be issued with the appropriate PPEs
including helmets, overcoats, goggles etc.

» Construction crew at the site will be
sensitized on social issues such as drugs,
alcohol diseases.

* A first aid kit should be provided within
the site. This should be fully equipped at
all times and should be managed by
qualified person.

* The contractor should have workmen's
compensation cover. It should comply
with the workmen’'s compensgtion act, as
well as ordinances, regulations and union
agreements. '

* Food handlers preparing food the workers
at the site should be controlled and
monitored to ensure that food is
hygienicaily prepared.

The full report of the proposed project is available for inspection during
working hours at:
. (a) Principal Secretary, Ministry of Environment, Water and
. Natural Resources, N.H.LF. Building, Community Area,
P.O. Box 30126-00100, Nairobi

- (b) Director General, NEMA Popo Road, off Mombasa
Road, P.O. Box 67839-00200, Natrobi:

(¢) County Director of Environment, Kiambu County
A copy of the E1A report can be downloaded at www nema.go.ke

The National Environment Management Authority invites members of
the pulilic to submit oral or written comments within thirty (30) days
from the date of publication of this notice to the Director-General,
NEMA, to assist the- Authority in the decision-making process for this
peoject. Kindly quoie ref. no. NEMA/EIA/S/2/1221

Comments can also be e-mailed to dgnema@nema.go ke

KODIA BISIA,

MR/ 8448768 for Director-General.

GAZETTE Namice No. 9205

THE ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT AND
CO-ORDINATION ACT

(No. 8 of 1999)

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC SUBMIT COMMENTS ON THE DRAFT
STRATEGIC ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT REPORT IN THE
MASTERPLAN POR LEATHER INDUSTRIAL PARK

Pursuant to Section 57 (A) of the Environmental Management and
Coordination (Amended) Act, 2013, Regulations 42 and 43 of the
Environmental (Impact Assessment and Audit) Regulations Legal
Notice No.ld of 2003 and the National Guidelines for Strategic
Environmental Assessment, the National Environmental Managemont
Authority (NEMA) has received a Draft Stratogic Environmental
Assessraent Roport For The Masterplan For Leather Industrial Park.
The SEA findings are also expected to integrate the existing sectoral
plans and programs to establish sustainable oconomic zone
development mechanisms.

The Export Processing Zones Authority (EPZA), a State
ion of the Government of Kenya under the Ministry of
Industrialization and Enterprise Development (MolED) is the owner of
the Master plan. The plan is a Kenya Vision 2030 flagship project
aimed at boosting the Manufacturing Sector GDP towards securing the
overall goal of transforming the country into a newly industrialized
middle income economy providing high quality life for all citizens by
the year 2030.

The Master plan for the Leather Industrial Park is situated on LR
No. 23961, a 301.1ha BPZA property located within the Kinanie
Division of Athi River Sub-county within Machakos County. The site
is situatod abiout 16 kilometres cast of Athi River Town and can be
accessed through the Mutonguni (C434) Rd connecting Mombasa
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Road to the Kangundo Road. On the ground, the sites franks Mbagathi
River adjacent to the EPZA operated sewage treatment plant located
about 4km East of the Kinanie Center.

The land use plan for Leather Industrial Park at Kiname has taken into
account the following:

(1)
(ii)

Plarm_mg Jurisdictions within the area,
Promotion of the economic contribution of the Leather
Sector in Kenya, "

(iii) The need to provide for forward and backward linkages in

leather value addition,

(iv) Need to optimize on pre-existing resources,

4]

Minimization of adverse social and environmental impacts

Design of the Master plan for the Leather Industrial Park allows for
components as follows:

L T T T T S T B R )

Tanneries

Value Addition Parks

An Administrative Center
Research and Development Center
SMEs

Trade Center -

Power Sub station

Transmission line

Logistics and Customs Offices
Residential Area

Internal Infrastructure

Common Effluent Treatment Plant including a sanitary
landfill site

The primary goal of the SEA Study in the Leather Industrial Park is to

provide

a clear but flexible framework to ensure harmonious

integration of the Master plan into local and national planning
initiatives with minimal environmental and social shocks. The SEA

seeks to

secure development of a Leather City that 1s technically

sound, economically sustainable and socially acceptable with benefits

accruing

to Kinanie, County and National Government Levels.

Specifically, this SEA Study targets objectives as follows:

(D

(ii)

(1)

To identify environmental and social priorities and key
linkages between environmental protection and trade growth
in the Master plan area and beyond,;

To assess likely significant effects of Leather Industrial Park
development on these environmental and social priorities and
key linkages;

To formulate a set of measures to address these priority

.concerns and to take advantage of opportunities that will

(iv)

emerge from Leather Industnal’ Park development,
considering institutional and financial conditions needed for
implementing such proposal; and,

To recommend mechanisms that will" enable future
adjustments to majntain and promote sustainable and
equitable economic/trade growth in response to phased and
gradual development of the Leather Industrial Park.

The key potential negative {mpacts and recommended mitigation
measures in implementing the Master plan for the Leather Industrial
Park are highlighted below-

Category Nature of Impact Recommendations
Pre-existing Nuisances (odour, EPZA to continue
impacts/concerns  dust) and hazards mobilizing the support

of other stakeholders in
resolving concerns
associated with
operation of the
sewerage plant including

posed by operation
of sewerage disposal
activities in Kinanie.

regulation of

independent  sewerage

service providers.
Pollution  concerns NEMA  to  exploit
posed by non- available options in
authorised reigning in enforcing

connections to the
EPZA sewer line.

requirements of Legal
Notice 120 of EMCA.

Category

}
General Concerns

Impacts associated
with operation of
tanneries and other
investments at
Kinanie

Social and economic
impacts

Nature of Impact

Pollution load from
non-treated sewerage
effluent from Athi-
river based factories .

Potential 1o induce

non planned
development at
Kiname.

Cumulative
degradation -  of

habitat for wildlife in
Kinanie Division.

Cumulative pressure
on the limited surface
and groundwater
resource base of Ath
River basin.

Cumulative pollution
loading in the
Mbagathi-Athi
system currently
already polluted by
draining Nairobi,
Thika, Athi River,
Machakos and Kitui
Towns.

Erosion of
environmental
quality at Kinanie
due to solid, liquid
and atmospheric
pollutants generated
in the Leather
Industrial Park.

Introduction of
invasive/alien
species in
construction
materials

.

Recommendations .
As above

Proponent to collaborate
with  the Machakos
County Government to
ensure adoption of zoned
development at Kinanie
in line with Cap 264.

Remaining hends  of
herbivores to be
accommodated  within
the confines of the
Leather Industrial Park
towards maintaining
minimum viable
populations.

Proponent to collaborate
with  sectoral Lead
agencies . (Wrma,
Tanathi, Mavwasco,
Awsb (Nairobi Wssco)
to develop a masterplan
providing for waler
Demand Management in
the Leather Industrial
Park and associated
Leather City.

Adoption of a Leather
Industrial Park Model
which is heavy on value
addition and lean on
tannery development at
Kinanie. ’

Each Investment to
undergo mandatoty EIA
cycle

Upfront development of
a Common Effluent
Treatment Plant and
Sanitary Landfill to be
operated in line with
LNs 120/121 of EMCA

Participatory

monitoring of activities
of all investors.

As above

Screening  of  sites
targeted for material
exploitation

Degradation of local * Participatory vetting of

labour-force due to
poor wages and
working conditions.

potential investors,

Adherence

to OSHA,
2007. :

¢ Adoption of an

institutional framework
allowing  for  local
participation.

e — it it et e
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Category Nature af Impact Recommendations

Inadequate domestic The EPZA and partners
market for value in the Leather Industrial
added leather and Park should aggressively
leather products can address all barriers to
hurt investors who market penetration for

currently process  locally produced
wet blue grade finished leather and
leather for export. leather products.

Marginalization of Adoption of a Leather

current players in the  Industrial Park model

leather value chain. that accommodates
current players including
access to quality inputs,

Possible disconnect Development and
with other sectoral implementation of the
laws, strategres. Master plan for Leather
Industrial Park  will
conform to reigning

Other cancerns

policy-legal framework -

at both County and
National ~ Government
' Level.
The full Draft Strategic Environmental Assessment for the Master Plan
for the Leather Industrial Park is available for inspection during
working hours at is available for inspection during working hours at:

(a) Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Environment, Natural Resources
and Regional Development Authorities, N.H.L.F. Building,
P.O. Box 30126-00100, Nairoba.

(b) Director General, NEMA, Popo Road, off Mombasa Road,
P.O. Box 67839-00200, Nairob:.

(c) Count} Director of Environment, Machakos County.

The National Environment Management Authority invites
members of the public to submit oral or written comments within
thirty (30) days from the date of publication of this notice to the
Directog-General, NEMA, to assist the Authority in the decision
making process of the plan.

GEOFFREY WAHUNGU,
for Director-General,

MR /8473281 National Environment Management Authority.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 5206
THE PHYSICAL PLANNING ACT
(Cap. 286)
COMPLETION OF PART DEVELOPMENT PLAN

(PDP No. R/BII162/2015/01 for Claude Academy Silangwa in
Chemolingor Town)

NOTICE is given that the above-mentioned developmcnt plan was
on 22nd November, 2015, completed.

The part development plan relates to land situated within
Chemolingot Town, Baringo County.

Capies of the part development plans aye available for public
inspection at the office of the Chief Officer, Lands, Housing and
Urban' Development, the County Physical Planning Officer and Tiaty
Sub-county Administrator's Office, Chemolingot.

The copies so deposited are available for public inspection at the
office of the Chief Officer, Lands, Housing and Urban Development,
the County Physical Planning Officer and Tiaty Sub-county
Administrator’s Office, Chemolingot, between the hours of 8.00 a.m.
to 5.00 p.m. Monday to Friday.

Any nterested person who wishes to make any representation in
connection with or objection to the above-named part development
plan may send such representation or objection in writing to the Chief
Officer, Lands, Housing and Urban Development or County Physical
Planning Office, P.O. Box 53-30400, Karbanet, within sixty (60) days
from the date of publication of this notice and any such representation
or objection shall state the ground on which it is made.

FRANKLINE K. OTIENO,

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9207
THE PHYSICAL PLANNING ACT
(Cap. 286)
COMPLETION OF PART DEVELOPMENT PLAN

(PDP No. 12/4/CT/2015/0]1 for proposed Regularization of Squatter
Sertlement in Kisimami, Mombasa (Ziwa la Ng'ombe Extension) Plot
No. MN/1/6944/R)

NOTICE 1s given that the above- menuoned development plan was
on 18th May, 2015, completed.

The part development plan relates to Iand s:tuated within Mombasa
Mainland North.

Copies of the part development plans are available for public
inspection at the offices of County Physical Planning Officer, Bima
Tower Annex.

The copies so deposited are available for public inspection at the
office of the County Physical Planming Officer, Bima Tower Annex,
between the hours o£8.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. Monday to Friday.

Any interested person who wishes to make any representation in
connection with or objection to the above-named part development
plan may send such representation or objection in writing to the
District Physical Planning Officer, P.O. Box 8387680100, Mombasa,
within sixty (60) days from the date of publication of this notice and
any such representation or objection shall state the ground on which it
is made.

ba(ed the 18th November, 2015.

P.O. MANYALA,

MR/8473202 Jfor Director of Physical Planning.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9208
THE PHYSICAL PLANNING ACT
(Cap. 286)
. COMPLETION OF PART DEVELOPMENT PLAN
(PDPs for proposed County Government of Kiambu Area Rates)

IN EXERCISE of the powers conferred by sections 5 (1) and 15
(1) of the Rating Act, the County Government of Kiambu has, with the
approval of the County Executive Commuittee, imposed a flat
dIfferentiated rate upon the area of land within its area of jurisdiction,
but excludes those already paymg site value , and those still under
agricultural use:

MR/8473132 for Director of Physical Planning

Sub-County/Region Use Amow:r Per
m
Kiambaa, Mucatha OPDH 3=
Multi Dwelling 8/=
“Industrial 8/=
Commercial 15/=
Kiambaa, Ruaka OPDH - 3=
Muiti Dwelling 8/=
Industrial 8/=
; Commercial 15/=
Kiambu, Kanunga, Kingiti, | OPDH 3=
e Riabai and Ndumberi
Multi Dwelling 8/=
Industrial . B/=
Commercial 15/=
Gatundu, Kamwangi, OPDH : 2=
Kiganjo and Githunguri, {
Kwa Maiko
Multi Dwelling 6i=
Industrial 6/=
Commercial 10/=
Limuru, Bibirioni and OPDH =
Ngecha
Multi Dwelling 8/=
Industrial 8/=
Commercial- 15/=
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Sub-County/Region Use Amount Per Employers Organizations or Federation, of the receipt of application
m’ for registration of the following:

Kabete, Wangige and OPDH 3= )

Gachie 1. Kenya School of Government Workers Union.
Multi Dwelling B/i= ThE Tiitice & the followi . Trade Uni
Industrial 2= notice Is given to ! wing registered nions,
oGl 15/= Employers Organizations or Federations:

Kikuyu, Kinoo and Regen OFD_H - 3= 1. Kenya Union of Domestic, Hotels, Educational Institutions,
Multi Dwelling 8/= Hospitals and Allied Workers.
Industrial 8/= )
Commercial 15/= to submit in writing any such objections against the mpplicants

. Dated the 14th November, 2015.

MR/8473028

E.M. KUMUNGA,

County Executive Commitiee Member,
Land, Housing and Physical Planning.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9209

THE COMPANIES ACT
(Cap. 486)
DISSOLUTION

PURSUANT to section 339 (5) of the Companies Act, it is notified -

for general information that the under mentioned companies are

dissolved. .
Number Name of Company
C. 20565 Airwork Limited
C. 139399 Asiliano Limited
CPR/2011/39197 Bado Mambo Limited
CPR/2010/23544 Bayswater Limited
CPR/2013/108411 Beamo Limited .
CPR/2010/25607 Bustani Housing Management
y Limited
CPR/2011/43985 Charlies Angels Limited
C. 102582 Digital Productions Limited
C. 17929 Engineering Holdings Limited
C. 80016 Ethan Godowns Limited
CPR/2005/11782 Furever Limited
CPR/2011/54281 Ganibb Limited -
C. 94180 Green Highway Service Station
Limited
CPR/2011/45987 Globaltrain Institute Limited
CPR/2011/50006 Goldline Holdings Limited
CPR/2010/31501 Hela Bora Limited
C. 69591 High-Tech Electronics and Allied
CPR/2014/171318 Integrated Yrnr Limited
CPR/2012/78486 Igra Communications Limited
CPR/2015/184898 Landscaping & Maintenance
Services Limited
C.43474 Leckie Brothers Limited
© CPR/2011/53799 Nagarjuna Construction Company
(Kenya) Limived
CPR/2009/14488 Sovereign Mergers Limited
CPR/2010/25841 Solaken Limited
CPR/2010/21108 Talek Tented Camp Limited
CPR/2010/29860 Tassle Limited
CPR/2011/46036 Taninvest Company Limited
C. 146178 Terrain Works Limited
C. 53381 Tevel Holdings Limited
C.95412 Wakamw Plants & Equipment
Limited
CPR/2011/56364 Waterpro Africa Limited
CPR/2010/33609 Zone Infinity Limited .
CPR/2009/11637 : Zawapa Limited v
Dated 24th November, 2015.
COLLETA MAWEU,
Jor Registrar of Companies.,
GAZETTE NOTICE No. 9210
THE LABOUR RELATIONS ACT
(No. 14 of 2007)

APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION OF TRADE UNIONS

NOTICE is given pursuant to section 14, 15 and 17 of the Labour
Relations Act, to all Trade Unions, Federation of Trade Unions,

within twenty one (21) days from the dae of publication of this sotice.

E.N. GICHEHA,

MR/8473265 Registrar of Trade Unions.

GAZETTE NOTICE N0. 9211 %
UAP LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 23842-00100, Nairobi
Loss oF PoLiCy

" Policy No. MUOOO04799 in the name of Rachel Njoki Njuguna.

APPLICATION has been made to this company for the issue of
duplicate of the above numbered policy, the original haviag beea
reported as lost or misplaced. Notice is givén that unless objection is
lodged to the contrary at the office of the campany within thirty (30)
days from the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be isswod, which
will be the sole evidence of the contract.

Dated the-1st December, 2015.

HARMON MULE,

MR/8473206 Claims Department.

GAZETTE NOTICE No. 9212
OLD MUTUAL LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Imotporﬂed in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 3005900100, Nairobi
Loss oF Poucy
Policy No. 2627046 in the name of A. J. H. Bhatt.

APPLICATION has been made to this company for the issue of
duplicate of the above numbered policy, the original having been
reported as lost or misplaced. Nofice is given that unless objoctian is
lodged to the comtrary at the office of the company within thirty (30)
days from the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, which
will be the sole evidence of the contract.

Dated the 1st December, 2015.

_ LUCY KINUTHIA,

MR/8473218 Officer, Claims.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9213

OLD MUTUAL LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

) (Incorporated in Kenya) :
Head Office: P.O. Box 30059-00100, Nairobi
LOss OF POLICY

Policy No. 37015558 in the name of Margaret Nungari Ngigi.

APPLICATION has been made to this company for the issse of
duplicate of the above numbered policy, the original haviag been
reported as lost or misplaced. Notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to the contrary at the office of the company within thisty (30)
days from the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issmed, which
will be the sole evidence of the comtract. -

Dated the Ist December, 2015.

LUCY KINUTHIA,

MR/8473218 Officer, Claims.

o R S i O A A=Y
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GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9214

OLD MUTUAL LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 30059-00100, Nairobi
L.0ss OF POLICY
Policy No. 37004825 in the name of Timothy Isaec Bryant.

APPLICATION has been made to this company for the issue of
duplicate of the above numbered policy, the. original having been
reported as lost or misplaced. Notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to the contrary at the office of the company within thirty (30}
days frem the date of this notice, dupljcate policy will be issued, which
will be the sole evidence of the contract. .

Dated the 1st December, 2015. :
LUCY KINUTHIA,

MR/8473218 Officer, Claims.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9218

OLD MUTUAL LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 3005900100, Nairobi
Loss OF POLICY
Policy No. 6009874 in the name of Samuel Gitau Kimani.

APPLICATION has been made to this company for the issue of
duplicate of the above numbered policy, the original having been
reported as lost or misplaced. Notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to the contrary at the office of the company within thirty (30)
days from the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, which
will be the sctie evidence of the contract.

Dated the 19th November, 2015.
LUCY KINUTHIA,

MR/8473110 Officer, Claims.

GAZETFE NOTICE NO. 9215
OLD MUTUAL LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
j (Incorporated in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 30059-00100, Nairobi
Loss OF POLICY
Policy Wo. 2626533 in the name of R. H. R. Sahi.

MAHON has been made to this company for the issue of
duplicage of the above numbered policy, the original having been

reported as lost or misplaced. Notice is given that unless objection is |

lodged 20 the contrary at the office of the company within thirty (30)
days fream the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, which
will be ghe sole evidence of the contract.

Dawmd the 1st December, 2015, .
LUCY KINUTHIA,

MR/8473218 Officer, Claims.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9219
OLD MUTUAL LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 30059-00100, Nairobi
Loss OF PoLICY
Policy No. 6002242 in the name of Mitiam Jerotich Cherogony.

APPLICATION has been made to this company for the issue of
duplicate of the above numbered policy, the original having been
reported as lost or misplaced. Notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to the contrary at the office of the company within thirty (30)
days from the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, which
will be the sole evidence of the contract.

Dated the 19th November, 2015.

LUCY KINUTHIA,

MR/8473110 Officer, Claims.

GAZETY¥E NOTICE NO. 9216
OLD MUTUAL LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Kenya) ’
Head Office: P.O. Box 30059-00100, Nairobi
LOss OF POLICY
Policy No. 6001378 in the name of Josephine Wanjuhi Kariuki. -

. APMLICATION has been made to this company for the issue of
duplicae of the above numbered policy, the original having been
reported as lost or misplaced. Notice is given that unless objection is
lodged %o the contrary at the office of the company within thirty (30)
days fram the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, which
will be he sole evidence of the contract.

Datpd the 23rd November, 2015.
LUCY KINUTHIA,

MR/B473110 Officer, Claims.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9220
OLD MUTUAL LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 3005900100, Nairobi
Loss OF POLICY
Policy No. 37003572 in the name of Fred Kiio Kavila.

APPLICATION has been made to this company for the issue of
duplicate of the above numbered policy, the original having been
reported as lost or misplaced. Notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to the contrary at the office of the company witliin thirty (30)
days from the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, which
will be the sole evidence of the contract.

Dated the 23rd November, 2015.

LUCY KINUTHIA,

MR/8473110 Officer, Claims.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9217
OLD MUTUAL LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
. (Incorporated in Kenya)
. . Head Office: P.©. Box 30059-00100, Nairobi
Loss OF POLICY
Policy No. 6000008 in the name ofN:'misﬁ A.J. Shah.

APPLICATION has been made to this company for the issue of
duplicate of the above numbered policy, the original having been
reported as lost or misplaced. Notice is given that unless objection is
lodged o the contrary at the office of the company within thirty (30)
days from the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, which
will be the sole evidence of the contract.

Dated the 23rd November, 2015.

! LUCY KINUTHIA,

MR/B4T3110 Officer, Claims.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9221
OLD MUTUAL LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY-LIMITED
B (Inooupoméd in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 30059-00100, Nairobi
Loss oF POLICY
Policy No. 37003106 in the name of Dismas Odhiambo Oketch.

APPLICATION has been made to this company for the issue of
duplicate of the above numbered policy, the original having been
reported as lost or misplaced. Notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to the contrary at the office of the company within thirty (30)
days from the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, which
will be the sole evidence of the contract.

Dated the 18th November, 2015.
LUCY KINUTHIA,

MR/8473110 Officer, Claims.
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GAZETTE NOTICE N0O. 9222

LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LIMITEE)
Head Office: P.O. Box 30364-00100, Nairobi
Loss OF POLICY
Policy No. 8000329 in the name and on the life of Andrew Karanja.

APPLICATION having been made to this company on the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30} days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be
used as the only valid document by the company for all future
transactions.

Dated the 13th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANJUI,

MR/8473022 Manager of Customer Service, Liberty Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9223

LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 3036400100, Nairobi
' LOSS OF POLICY

Policy No. 8000740 in the name and on the life of Victor Kariuki
Kamau.

APPLICATION having been made to this company on the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30) days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be
used as the only valid document by the company for all future
transactions.

Dated the 13th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANJUIL, -

MR/8473022 Manager of Customer Service, Liberty Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9224
LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 30364-00100, Nairobi
Loss OF POLICY

Policy No. 6946071 in the name and on the life of Faith Nakobelo
Masinde.

APPLICATION having been made to this company on the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30) days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be
used as the only valid document by the company for all future
transactions.

Dated the 13th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANJUI,

MR/8473022 Manager of Customer Service, Liberty Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9226

. LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 30364-00100, Nairobi
Loss OF POLICY

Policy No. 6961953 in .rhe name and on the life of Tony Kipkorir
Chelashaw.

APPLICATION ha\ring been made to this company on the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30) days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be
used as the only valid document by the company for all future
transactions.

Dated the 13th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANJUT,

MR/8473022 Managér of Customer Service, Liberty Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9227

LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LIMITED -
Head Office: P.O. Box 30364-00100, Nairobi
A Loss oF PoLICY

Policy No. 6982430 m the name and on the life of Patrick Mbandu
Musau.

APPLICATION having been made to this company on the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30) days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be
used as the only valid document by the company for all future
transactions.

Dated the 13th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANHIIL,

MR/8473022 Manager of Customer Service, Liberty Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9228
LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LlMlTED
Head Office: P.O. Box 30364-00100, Nairobi
Loss OF PoLICY

Policy No. 6993013 in the name and on the life of Benﬁd Kuria
Mburu.

APPLICATION having been made to this company pn the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30) days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be
used as the only valid document by the company for all future
transactions.

Dated the 13th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANJUI,

MR/8473022 Manager of Customer Service, Liberty Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9225
LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 3036400100, Nairobi
' Loss oF POLICY
Policy No, 4972293 in the name and on the life of Hassan Sheriff
Abdalla. ;

APPLICATION having been made to this company on the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30) days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be
used as the only valid document by the company for all future
transactions.

Dated the 13th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANIUI,

MR/8473022 Manager of Customer Service, Liberty Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE No. 9229
LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 3036400100, Nairobi
LOss OF POLICY

Policy No. 8117334 in the name and on the life of Ezekiel Nganga
Kamau.

APPLICATION having been made to this company on the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30) days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be
used as the only valid document by the company for all future
transactions.

Dated the 13th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANIUI,

MR/8473022 Manager of Customer Service, Liberty Life.
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GAZETTE NOTICE NO 9230
LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 30364-00100, Nairobi
LOSS OF PoLICY
Policy No. 8124658 in the name and on the life of Onesmus Gitau
Njoki.

APPLICATION having been made to this company on the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30) days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be

used as the only valid document by the company for all future
transactions.

Dated the 13th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANJUI,

MR/8473022 Manager of Customer Service, Liberty Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE N0. 9231

LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LIMITED
Head Office. P.O. Box 30364-00100, Nairobi
LOSS OF POLICY

Policy No. B135885 in the name and on the life of Jane Achieng
Okech.

APPLICATION having been made to this company on the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30) days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be
used as the only valid document by the company for all future
transactions.

Dated the 13th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANJUI,

MR/8473022 Manager of Customer Service, Liberty Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE N0O. 9232

LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 30364-00100, Nairobi
LoOss OF POLICY

Policy No. 8150248 in the name and on the life of Daniel Stanley
Okore.

APPLICATION having been made to this company on the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30) days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be
used as the only valid document by the company for all future
transactions.

Dated the 13th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANIJUI,

MR/8473022 Manager of Customer Service, Liberty Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9233
LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 30364-00100, Nairobi
Loss oF PoLICY

Policy No. 8135567 in the name and on the life of Mechah Charles Z.
Moturi.

APPLICATION having been made to this company on the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30) days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be
used as the only valid document by the company for all future
trangactions.

Dated the 18th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANIUI,

MR/8473021 Manager of Customer Service, Liberty Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9234

LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 30364-00100, Nairobi
L.0ss OF POLICY

Policy No. 6944775 in the name and on the life of Ramla Rashid
Abdalla.

APPLICATION having been made to this company on the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30) days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be
used as the only valid document by the company for all future
transactions.

Dated the 18th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANJUI,

MR/8473021 Manager of Customer Service, Liberty Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9235

LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 3036400100, Nairobi
L0ss OF PoLICY
Policy No. 4133220 in the name and on the life of Surjeet K. Singh.

APPLICATION having been made to this company on the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30) days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be
used as the only valid document by the company for all future
transactions.

Dated the 18th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANJUI,

MR/8473021 Manager of Customer Service, Liberty Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9236

LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 3036400100, Nairobi
LoSs OF POLICY

Policy No. 8170174 in the name and on the life of Charles Wakhu
Rickens.

APPLICATION having been made to this company on the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30) days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be
used as the only valid document by the company for all future
transactions.

Dated the 18th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANJUI,

MR/8473021 Manager of Customer Service, Liberty Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9237
LIBERTY LIFE ASSURANCE KENYA LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 30364-00100, Nairobi
Loss OF POLICY

Policy No. 8131485 in the name and on the life of Billy Amugune
Amendi.

APPLICATION having been made to this company on the loss of
the above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to Liberty Life Assurance Limited within thirty (30) days from
the date of this notice, duplicate policy will be issued, and shall be
used as the only valid document by the company for all future
transactions.

Dated the 18th November, 2015.

KRISTOPHER KINYANJUIL,

MR/8473021 Manager of Customer Service, Liberty Life.
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GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9238 GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9242
ICEA LION LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED APA LIFE ASSURANCE LIMITED
(Incorporated in 'Kenyn) Loss OF POLICY

Head Office: P.O. Box 46143 —00100, Nﬁmbi
Loss oF PoLicY
Policy No. 026/ULP/030921 in the name of Kamande Margare!.

Notice havirig been given on the loss of the above policy, a

duplicate policy will be issued and where applicable benefits due will
be paid out unless.an objection is filed with the undnmgned within
thirty (30) days from the date of this notice. '

Dated the 3rd November, 2015.
o , ' M. WAICHINGA,
MR/8473138 © '’ Manager, Ordinary Life Operations.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9239
ICEA LION LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Kenya)
Head Office; P.O. Box 46143—00100; Nairobi
Loss oF PoLICY

Policy No. 026/ULP/031579 in the name of Mbindyo Yvonne K. K.

Notice having been given on the leoss of the above policy, a
duplicate policy will be issued and where applicable benefits due will

be paid out unless an objection is filed with the undersigned within
thirty (30) days from the date of this notice.

Dated the 13th November, 2015.
: M. WAICHINGA,
MR/8473138 Manager, Ordinary Life Operations.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9240

ICEA LION LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 46143 —00100, Nairobi
Loss oF PoLICY
Policy No.026/ULP/029198 in the name of Khacheso Jane Njeri.
Notice having been given on the loss of the above policy, a
duplicate policy will be issued and where applicable benefits due will

be paid out uniess an objection is filed with the undersigned within
thirty (30) days from the date of this notice.
Dated the 29th October, 2015.
M. WAICHINGA,

MR/8473138 " Manager, Ordinary Life Operations.

GAZETTE NOTICE No. 9241

- APA LIFE ASSURANCE LIMITED
Loss or PoLICY

Policy No. N/15961 in the name of Ruth An}mgo Aginga, of P.O. Box
4740609, Usenge.

NOTICE is given that evidence of loss or destruction of the above
policy documents has been submitted to the company and any person
in possession of the policy documents or claiming to have interest
therein should be communicated within thirty days (30) by registered
post with the company, failing any such communication certified
copies of the policy which shall be the sole evidence of the contracts
will be issued.

Dated the 23rd October, 2015.

WILBRODA ODERA,
MR/8473168 Head of Individual, Life.

Policy No. N/15307 in the name of Grace Obura, of P.O. Box 44—
40100, Kisumu.

NOTICE is given that evidence of loss or destruction of the above
policy documents has been submitted to the company and any person
in possession of the policy documents or claiming to have interest
therein should be communicated within thirty days (30) by registered
post with the company, failing any such communication certified
copies of the policy which shall be the sole evidence of the contracis
will be issued.

Dated the Ist October, 2015.

WILBRODA ODERA,
MR/8473168 Head of Individual, Life.
GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9243
APA ASSURANCE LIMITED
LoOss OF POLICY

Policy No. N/16079 in the name of Joan Jemutai Kipyegomen, of PO,
Box 392-30202, Moi's Bridge.

NOTICE is given that evidence of loss or destruction of the above
policy documents has been submitted to the company and any person
in possession of the policy documents or claiming to have interest
therein should be communicated within thirty days (30) by registered
post with the company, failing any such communication certified
copies of the policy which shall be the sole evidence of the contracts
will be issued.

Dated the 23rd October, 2015.

WILBRODA ODERA,
MR/8473168 Head of Individual, Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9244
PIONEER ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 20333-00200, Nairobi
Loss oF PoLICY

Policy No. 201106296 in the name and on the life of Samuel Michael
Ndungu.

REPORT has been made to this company on the loss of the above
numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is lodged to
Pioneer Assurance Company Limited within thirty (30) days from the
date of this notice, a duplicate policy will be issued and shall be used
as the only valid documents by the company for ail future transactions.

Dated the 25th November, 2015.
TIMOTHY MUTUA,
MR/8473117 Life Manager.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9245
PIONEER ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 2033300200, Nairobi
Loss OF POLICY

Policy No. 280002634 in the name and on the life of John Okinyi
Ngonge.

REPORT has been made to this company on the loss of the above
numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is lodged to
Pioneer Assurance Company Limited within thirty (30) days from the
date of this notice, a duplicate policy will be issued and shall be used
as the only valid documents by the company for all future transactions.

Dated the 25th November, 2015.
TIMOTHY MUTUA,
MR/8473117 Life Manager.

e
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GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9246
PIONEER ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Head Office: P.O. Box 20333-00200, Nairobi
Loss oF PoLICY

Policy No. 201202647 in the name and on the life of Hieromini
Mwambi.

REPORT has been made to this company on the loss of the above
numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is lodged to

Pioneer Assurance Company Limited within thirty (30) days from the
date of this notice, a duplicate policy will be issued and shall be used

as the only valid documents by the company for all future transactions.

Dated the 25th November, 2015.
. TIMOTHY wwA
MR/8473117

i-lft Manaxﬂ'. .

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9247 )
OORPORATE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 34172, Nairobi
Loss oF PoLICY

Policy No. CL/20/12135 in the name and on the life of Francis Nyiro
Ruwa.

APPLICATION has been made to this company for the issue of a
duplicate of the above numbered policy, the original having been
reported as lost or misplaced. Notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to the contrary at the office of the company within thirty (30)
days from the date of this notice, a duplicate policy will be issued,
which will be the sole evidence of the contract.

Dated the 1st December 2015.

MARY WANIJIRU,

MR/8473227 Life Department.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9248
CORPORATE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 34172, Nairobi
Loss OF POLICY

Policy No. CLI20/112535 in the name and on the life of Alice N.
Nyamao.

APPLICATION has been made to this company for the issue of a
duplicate of the above numbered policy, the original having been
reported as lost or misplaced. Notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to the contrary at the office of the company within thirty (30)
days from the date of this notice, a duplicate policy will be issued,
which will be the sole evidence of the contract.

Dated the 1st December 2015.

MARY WANIJIRU,

MR/8473227 Life Department.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9249

CORPORATE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 34172, Nairobi
Loss oF PoLiCY

Policy No. CL/20/14412 in the name and on the life of Edgar
Kelomboto Imbuchi.

APPLICATION has been made to this company for the issue of a
duplicase of the above numbered policy, the original having been
reported as lost or misplaced. Notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to the contrary at the office of the company within thirty (30)
days frem the date of this notice, a duplicate policy will be issued,
which will be the sole evidence of the contract.

Dated the 1st December 2015. .
MR/8473227

»

. MR/B4494ZS = .

GAZETTE NOTICE No, 9250
CORPORATE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporsted in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 34172, Nairobi
Loss OF POLICY

Policy No. CL/20/13103 in the name and on the life of Julius Andere
Nashon.

APPLICATION has been made.to. this company for the issue of a
. duplicate of the ‘abo¥e gumbered policy, the original having been
reposied.as tost or mispiaced. Notice is given that unless objection is
1 - lodged %0 the contrary at the office of the .company within thirty (30)

+.|+ days from the dme of this notice, tduphcmpolmywdlbenssued.
 which will be the sole evidence of the contract. .

" 44 . Dated the Lst Deapmber 2015..
MRaaTIT

MARY WANIJIRU,
Life Department.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9251
CORPORATE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Kenya)
Head Office; P.O. Box 34172, Nairobi
Loss oF POLICY
Policy No. CL/12/5269 in the name and on the life of Eunice Kinanga.

APPLICATION has been made to this company for the issue of a
duplicate of the above numbered policy, the original having been
reported as lost or misplaced. Notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to the contrary at the office of the company within thirty (30)
days from the date of this notice, a duplicate policy w:ll be issued,
which will be the sole evidence of the contract.

Dated the 1st December 2015. )
MARY WANIIRU,

MR/8473227 Life Department.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9252
CORPORATE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 34172, Nairobi
Loss OF POLICY

Policy No. CL/10/10933 in the name and on the life of Kiberenge M.
Ursula.

APPLICATION has been made to this company for the issue of a
duplicate of the above numbered policy, the original having been
reported as lost or misplaced. Notice is given that unless objection is
lodged to the contrary at the office of the company within thirty (30)
days from the date of this notice, a duplicate policy will be issued,
which will be the sole evidence of the contract.

Dated the 1st December 2015.

MARY WANIIRU,

MR/8473227 Life Department.

GAZETTE NOTICE NoO. 9253
BRITISH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY (K) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 3037500100, Nairobi
Loss OF PoLICY

Policy No. 161-13814 in the name and on the life of Wilson Gitdu
Reuben.

- REPORT having been made to this company on the Joss of the

'abovenmnhewdpohcy.mtmmgzm that unless objection is
to British American Insurance Company (K) Limited within thirty (30)."
days from the date 'of this-notice, a duplicate policy will be issued and
shall be used as the only valid documents by the company for all
future transactions.

Dated the 19th November, 2015.,.

S I e e J.K. MITEI,

N LI 5 'Underwriting Manager, Life.
- e o
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GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9254

BRITISH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY (K) LIMITED
{Incorporated in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 30375-00100, Nairobi
Loss oF POLICY
Policy No. 161-14478 in the name and on the life of Samuel Gathogo
Mwangi.

REPORT having been made to this company on the loss of the
above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is lodged
to British American Insurance Company (K) Limited within thirty (30)
days from the date of this notice, a duplicate policy will be issued and
shall be used as the only valid documents by the company for all
future transactions.

Dated the 19th November, 2015.

1. K. MITEI,

MR/8449485 -Underwriting Manager, Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9255

BRITISH AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY (K) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Kenya)
Head Office: P.O. Box 30375-00100, Nairobi
Loss OF POLICY
Policy No. 160-3220 in the name and on the life of Magdaline
Nyagwala.

REPORT having been made to this company on the loss of the
above numbered policy, notice is given that unless objection is lodged
to British American Insurance Company (K) Limited within thirty (30)
days from the date of this notice, a duplicate policy will be issued and
shall be used as the only valid documents by the company for all
future transactions.

Dated the 19th November, 2015.

J. K. MITEI,

MR/8449485 Underwriting Manager, Life.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9256
CHANGE OF NAME

NOTICE is given that by a deed poll dated 24th June, 2014, duly
executed and registered in the Registry of Documents at Nairobi as
Presentation No. 3169, in Volume D1, Folio 284/6157, File No.
MMXYV, by our client, Ibrahim Hassan Abdi, of P.O. Box 26034-
00100, Nairobi in the Republic of Kenya, formerly known as Ahmed
Shariff Abdiwahab, formally and absolutely renounced and abandoned
the use of his former name Ahmed Shariff Abdiwahab and in lieu
thereof assumed and adopted the name Ibrahim Hassan Abdi, for all
purposes and authorizes and requests all persons at all times to
designate, describe and address him by his assumed name Ibrahim
Hassan Abdi only.

Dated the 2nd November, 2015.

ANYOKA & ASSOCIATES,
Advocates for Ibrahim Hassan Abdi,

MR/8473244 Sformerly known as Ahmed Shariff Abdiwahab.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9257
CHANGE OF NAME

NOTICE is given that by a deed poll dated 18th November,
2015, duly executed and registered in the Registry of Documents at
Mombasa as Presentation No. 343, in Volume B-13, Folio
1545/10175, File No. 1637, by our client, Ali Mohamed Nassor, of
P.O. Box 3011-80100, Mombasa in the Republic of Kenya, formerly
known as Ali Mohamed Nassor Maisery, formally and absolutely
renounced and abandoned the use of his former name Ali Mohamed
Nassor Maisery and in lieu thereof assumed and adopted the name Ali
Mohamed Nassor, for all purposes and authorizes and requests all
persons at all times to designate, describe and address him by his
assumed name Ali Mohamed Nassor only.

ANJARWALLA & KHANA,
Advocates for Ali Mohamed Nassor,

MR/8473119 Jormerly known as Ali Mohamed Nassor Maisery.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9258
CHANGE OF NAME

NOTICE is given that by a deed poll dated 1 1th July, 2015, duly
executed and registered in the Registry of Documents at Nairobi as
Presentation No. 2451, in Volume D1, Folio 278/6079, File No.
MMXYV, by our client, Milcah Jemeli Murei, formerly known as
Milka Jeruiyot Cherasa, formally and absolutely renounced and
abandoned the use of her former name Milka Jeruiyot Cherasa and in
lieu thereof assumed and adopted the name Milcah Jemeli Murei, for
all purposes and authorizes and requests all persons at all times to
designate, describe and address her by her assumed name Milcah
Jemeli Murei only.

Dated the 10th November, 2015.

ARAP MITEI & COMPANY,
Advocates for Milcah Jemeli Murei,

MR/8473158 formerly known as Milka Jeruiyot Cherasa.

GAZETTE NOTICE NoO. 9259
CHANGE OF NAME

NOTICE is given that by a deed poll dated 10th August, 2015,
duly executed and registered in the Registry of Documents at
Mombasa as Presentation No. 458, in Volume B-13, Folio
1534/10064, File No. 1637, by our client, Cliff Andere, of P.O. Box
76658-00508, Nairobi in the Republic of Kenya, formerly known as
Cliff Andere Ongoli, formally and absolutely renounced and
abandoned the use of tus former name Cliff Andere Ongoli and in lieu
thercof assumed and adopted the name CIiff Andere, for all purposes
and authorizes and requests all persons at all times to designate,
describe and address him by his assumed name Cliff Andere only.

Dated the 30th October, 20135.

BUYUKA OBONYO,
Advocates for Cliff Andere,

MR/8473208 Sformerly known as Cliff Andere Ongoli.

GAZETTE NOTICE No. 9260
CHANGE OF NAME

NOTICE is given that by a deed poll dated 23rd November,
2015, duly executed and registered in the Registry of Documents at
Nairobi as Presentation No. 2743, in Volume D1, Folio 320/6611, File
No. MMXYV, by our client, Muterian Ntanin Kitende, of P.O. Box 72,
Loitokitok in the Republic of Kenya, formerly known as Muterian
Ntanin, formally and absolutely renounced and abandoned the use of
his former name Muterian Ntanin and in lieu thereof assumed and
adopted the name Muterian Ntanin Kitende, for all purposes and
authorizes and requests all persons at all times to designate, describe
and address him by his assumed name Muterian Ntanin Kitende only.

Dated the 1st December, 2015.

BUYUKA OBONYO,
Advocates for Muterian Ntanin Kitende,

MR/8473186 formerly known as Muterian Ntanin.

GAZETTE NOTICE NO. 9261
CHANGE OF NAME

NOTICE is given that by a deed poll dated 15th October, 2015,
duly executed and registered in the Registry of Documents at Nairobi
as Presentation No. 1836, in Volume D1, Folio 307/6463, File No.
MMXYV, by our client, John Waturu Wathini, of P.O. Box 470-01030,
Gatundu in the Republic of Kenya, formerly known as John Gakunju
Kimundia, formally and absolutely renounced and abandoned the use
of his former name John Gakunju Kimundia and in lieu thereof
assumed and adopted the name John Waturu Wathini, for all purposes
and authorizes and requests all persons at all times to designate,
describe and address him by his assumed name John Waturu Wathini
only.

WAWERU MAINA & COMPANY,
Advocates for John Waturu Wathini,

MR/8473343 SJormerly known as John Gakunju Kimundia.

A e e




T

Tww" b

—— T

11th December, 2015

THE KENYA GAZETTE 2953

NOW ON SALE

THE NATIONAL POVERTY
ERADICATION PLAN
(1999-2015)

Price: KSh. 500

2010/2011
ANNEX OF ESTIMATES
OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE
OF STATE CORPORATIONS OF
GOVERNMENT OF KENYA
FOR THE YEAR ENDING
30TH JUNE, 2011

Price: KSh. 250

PUBLIC SECTOR WORKPLACE
POLICY ON HIV/AIDS

April, 2005

Price: KSh. 300

E-GOVERNMENT STRATEGY
The Strategic Framework
Administrative Structure, Training
Requirements and Standardization
Framework

March, 2004

" “Price: KSh. 300

Fd

ECONOMIC RECOVERY
STRATEGY FOR WEALTH AND
EMPLOYMENT CREATION

(2003—2007)

Price: KSh. 500

RECRUITMENT AND TRAINING
POLICY FOR PUBLIC SERVICE

May, 2005

Price: KSh. 250

SESSIONAL PAPER NO. 2 OF 2005
On Development of Micro and Small
Enterprises for Wealth and Employment
Creation for Poverty Reduction

Price: KSh. 300

SESSIONAL PAPER NO. 9 OF 2005
ON FOREST POLICY

Price: KSh. 300

STRATEGY FOR REVITALIZING
AGRICULTURE
(2004—2014)

March, 2004

Price: KSh. 200

REPORT OF THE JUDICIAL
COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO
THE GOLDENBERG AFFAIR

October, 2005

Price: KSh. 800
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NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
; PLAN 2002-2008

Effective Management for Sustainable
Economic Growth and Poverty
Reduction

Price: KSh. 750

i a-Ti'lE KENYA COMMUNICATIONS
: ,ACT (No. 2 OF 1998)
Transfer of Assets— Telposta
~ Pension Scheme

Transfer and Vesting of Assets and
Liabilities — The Communications
Commission of Kenya and the Postal -
Corporation of Kenya

Transfer of Emplgyées of the Kenya-

Posts and Telecbmmunications -
Corporation

(Kenya Gazette Supplement No. 59).

~ Price: KSh. 550

THE KENYA COMMUNICATIONS
ACT
(No. 2 OF 1998)

Transfer and Vesting of Assets and
Liabilities—Telkom Kenya Limited

(Kenya Gazette Supplement No. 59A and 59B)
Volume I (59A)
. Price: KSh. 1300

VYolume I (59B)
Price: KSh. 900

TREASURY MEMORANDUM OF
THE IMPLEMENTATION STATUS
ON THE SEVENTH REPORT OF
THE PUBLIC INVESTMENTS
COMMITTEE

Volume I1

1999

Price: KSh. 200

THE REPORT OF THE
CONTROLLER AND AUDITOR
GENERAL TOGETHER WITH
THE APPROPRIATION
ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PUBLIC
ACCOUNTS AND THE ACCOUNTS
OF THE FUNDS FOR THE YEAR
1996/97

Price: KSh. 5,000—yper set of 5
Volumes

SESSIONAL PAPER NO. 1 OF 1999
ON NATIONAL POLICY ON
WATER RESOURCES
MANAGEMENT AND
DEVELOPMENT

Ministry of Water Resources

Price: KSh. 200

REPORT OF THE PUBLIC
ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE ON
THE GOVERNMENT OF KENYA
ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR
1995/96
Volomre 11

Price: KSh. 500
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NOW ON SALE

THE NATIONAL POVERTY
.. ERADICATION PLAN
(1999-2015)

Price: KSh. 500

2010/2011
ANNEX OF ESTIMATES
OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE
OF STATE CORPORATIONS OF
GOVERNMENT OF KENYA
FOR THE YEAR ENDING
30TH JUNE, 2011

Price: KSh. 250

PUBLIC SECTOR WORKPLACE
POLICY ON HIV/AIDS

April, 2005

Price: KSh. 300

E-GOVERNMENT STRATEGY
The Strategic Framework
Administrative Structure, Training
Requirements and Standardization
Framework

March, 2004

Price: KSh. 300 -

. ECONOMIC RECOVERY
STRATEGY FOR WEALTH AND
EMPLOYMENT CREATION
(2003—2007)

| Price: KSh. 500

RECRUITMENT AND TRAINING
POLICY FOR PUBLIC SERVICE

-~ . May, 2005

 Price: KSh. 250

- SESSIONAL PAPER NO. 2-OF 2005
On Developrrent of Micro and Small
Enterprises for Wealth and’ Employment
Creatioft for Poverty Reduction

Price: KSh:300 .

"

SESSIONAL PAPER NO. 9 OF 2005
ON FOREST POLICY

Price: KSh. 300

STRATEGY FOR REVITALIZING
AGRICULTURE
 (2004—2014)

. March; 2004

" Price: KSh. 200 < .

REPORT OF THE JUDICIAL
COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO
THE GOLDENBERG AFFAIR

October, 2005

Price: KSh. 800
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NOW ON SALE

ECONOMIC SURVEY, 2011
Price: KSh. 1,000

THE FINANCE BILL, 2014
Price: KSh. 235

2011/2012
ESTIMATES OF RECURRENT
EXPENDITURE
OF THE
GOVERNMENT OF KENYA
FOR THE YEAR ENDING
30TH JUNE, 2011
VOL.I
Price: KSh. 1,400

VOL.II
Price: KSh. 1,200

VOL. I
Price: KSh. 1,100

2011/2012
ESTIMATES OF DEVELOPMENT
EXPENDITURE
OF THE
GOVERNMENT OF KENYA
FOR YEAR ENDING
30TH JUNE, 2011
VOL.I
Price: KSh. 1,100

VOL.II
Price: KSh. 1,100

THE NATIONAL ASSEMBLY
CONSTITUENCIES AND COUNTY
ASSEMBLY WARDS ORDER, 2012

Kenya Gazette Supplement No. 13
(Legal Notice No. 14 of 2012)
Price: KSh. 880

STATISTICAL ABSTRACT, 2011
Price: KSh. 1,000

THE CONSTITUTION OF KENYA
Price: KSh. 250

For further Information contact: The Government Printer, P.O.

Box 30128-00100, Nairobi, Tel. 317840/41/57/86/87.

IMPORTANT NOTICE TO SUBSCRIBERS TO THE KENYA
GAZETTE

THE following notes are for the guidance of persons submitting * copy for
inclusion in the Kenva Gazerte, Supplement, etc..

(1)  The Kenya Gazeite contains Notices of a general nature which do not
affect legislation. They are, therefore, submitted to the Government
Printer directly.

(2)  Legislative Supplement contains Rules and Regulations which are
issued by the Central Government, Because of this, they must be
submitted to the Government Printer through the office of the
Attorney-General,

(3)  Bul Supplement contams Bills which are for introduction in the
National Assembly.

(4)  Act Suppl © Acls

T

d by the National Assembly.

All “copy™ submitted for publication should be prepared on one side of an
A4 sheet no matter how small the Notice is, each page being numbered and
should be typewritten with double spacing. Copy should be clear, legible and
contain no alterations.

Particular attention should be paid'to the following points:

(i)  Signature must be supported by rubber-stamping or typing the name
of the signatory in capital letters.

(iiust be correct and filled in where necessary.
(iii) Care should be taken to ensure that all headngs to Notices and
references to legislation are up to date and conform with the Revised
Edition of the Laws of Kenya.
EXTRACT FROM THE CODE OF REGULATIONS, SECTION D—
Kenya Gazette

“D 34, (1) Communications for the Kenya Gazerte should reach the

Government anel not later than 9 a.m. on Friday of the week before

blication is d d The Gov Printer will not publish commenications
ncewed after that hour until the next subsequent issue of the Gazette.

(2) Ministries will be required to pay for the Kenya Gazette and to meet the
cost of advertising in it.

It is emphasized that these notes are for guidance only, but it is requested
that persons submitting copy for publicaton first satisfy themselves that such
copy 1s complete in every respect.

SUBSCRIPTION AND ADVERTISEMENT CHARGES

With effect from 1st July, 2012, subscription and advertisement fee for the
Kenya Gazette are as follows:

SUBSCRIPTION CHARGES:
KSh. crs.
Annual Subscription (excluding postage in Kenya) 13920 00
Annual Subscription (including postage in Kenya) ... ... .. O 16,935 00
Annual Subscription (ov ) 32015 00
Half-year Subscription (excluding postage in Kenya).... ....cooovuninns 6960 00
Half-year Subscription (including postage in Kenya) ... .. ... 8470 00
Half-year Subscription ( ) 16010 00
Single copy without suppl 15 ... 60 00
GAZETTED SUPPLEMENT CHARGES — PER CoOPY: Postage in
‘EA
KSh.cts KSh. cts.
Up to 2 pages . 15 00 60 00
Up to 4 pages e 25 00 60 00
Up 1o 8 pages . 40 00 60 00
Up to 12 PAEES .. cooven st smsenss o e . 60 00 60 00
Up to 16 pages R | 60 00
Up 1o 20 pages ......... .. 95 00 155 00
Up 1o 24 PARES .. s e o it memrissnisinnsnsinenssiens. 1 HE 00 115 00
Upto32 pages. ... ceeee 145 00 115 00
Up to 36 pages 165 00 ;
Up to 40 pages ........ 180 00 }fﬁé‘.’;ﬂf
Each additional 4 pages or part thereof .......ccocccrvvirainnns o 20 00
ADVERTISEMENT CHARGES: KSh. ets
Full page ... cc. cooeeu 27840 00
Full single column 13920 00
Three-q column 10,440 00
Half column 6,960 00
Quarter column or less.... cooover oeeees 3480 00

Subscribers and advertisers are advised to remit payments by bankers
cheques, postal orders or money orders drawn in favour of “Govermment
Printers”.

Revenue stamps cannot be accepted. Subscriptions and adverti
charges are paid in advance.

5. N. MIGWI,
Government Printer.
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